
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting EU Exit Working Group 

Date Wednesday 13 February 2019 

Time 3.00 pm 

Place Committee Room 4, City Hall, The 
Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at  
www.london.gov.uk/eu-exit-working-group 
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Working Group 
Len Duvall AM (Chair) 
Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 

Caroline Russell AM 
Peter Whittle AM 

 

 

A meeting of the Working Group has been called by the Chair of the Working Group to deal with the 

business listed below.  

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Tuesday 5 February 2019 

 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant; Telephone: 020 7983 4383; 
Email: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 55264458 
 
For media enquiries please contact Alison Bell, Head of Assembly Communications;  
Telephone: 020 7983 4228; Email: alison.bell@london.gov.uk.  If you have any questions about 
individual items please contact the author whose details are at the end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/eu-exit-working-group
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:ash.singleton@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
EU Exit Working Group 
Wednesday 13 February 2019 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements  
 
 

2 Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Lauren Harvey, lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 4383 
 
The Working Group is recommended to: 
 
(a) Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;  
 
(b)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 
Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and  

 
(c)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 
which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 
of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 
Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 
action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 

 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 64) 

 
 The Working Group is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meetings of the 

EU Exit Working Group held on 28 November 2018 to be signed by the Chair as a 
correct record.  
 

 The appendices to the minutes set out on pages 9 to 64 is attached for Members and officers 

only but are available from the following area of the Greater London Authority’s website: 

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-committees/eu-

exit-working-group 
 
 

4 Summary List of Actions (Pages 65 - 72) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Lauren Harvey, lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 4383 
 
The Working Group is recommended to note the completed and outstanding actions 
arising from previous meetings of the EU Exit Working Group, and additional 
correspondence. 

mailto:lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-committees/eu-exit-working-group
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-committees/eu-exit-working-group
mailto:lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk


 

4 
 

 
 

5 Contingency Planning as London Prepares for a "No-Deal" Brexit  
(Pages 73 - 76) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Richard Derecki, richard.derecki@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 4899 
 

The Working Group is recommended to: 

(a) Note the report as background to putting questions to Fiona Twycross AM 

and John Hetherington, and the subsequent discussion; and 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chair, in consultation with party Group Lead 

Members, to agree an output from the discussion. 
 
 

6 The Role of LEAP in Helping London Businesses Prepare for Brexit  
(Pages 77 - 84) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Richard Derecki, richard.derecki@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 4899 

 

The Working Group is recommended to: 

(a) Note the report as background to putting questions to Jamie Izzard, Senior 

Manager – Local Enterprise Panel, and the subsequent discussion; and 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chair, in consultation with party Group Lead 

Members, to agree an output from the discussion. 
 
 

7 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 Subject to a decision at the Annual Meeting, the next meeting of the EU Exit Working Group 

is scheduled for Wednesday, 19 June 2019 at 2.00pm in the Chamber, City Hall.  
 
 

8 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent  
 
 
 
 

mailto:richard.derecki@london.gov.uk
mailto:richard.derecki@london.gov.uk


 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2018 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: EU Exit Working Group  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 13 February 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM  

Jennette Arnold OBE AM European Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LB Bexley 

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LB Lewisham 

Unmesh Desai AM  

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM  

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM  

Nicky Gavron AM  

Susan Hall AM Member, LB Harrow 

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London 
Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough] 
 

3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant 

Telephone: 020 7983 4383 

E-mail: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk 

Page 3

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality


        

 

Page 4



                                                                      

 

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: EU Exit Working Group 
Date: Wednesday 28 November 2018 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Place: Committee Room 2, City Hall, The 

Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at:  

www.london.gov.uk/eu-exit-working-group  

 

 
Present: 
 
Len Duvall AM (Chair) 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Caroline Russell AM 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1) 

 
1.1 Apologies for absence were received from the Deputy Chairman, Gareth Bacon AM, and 

Peter Whittle AM. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interest (Item 2) 

 
2.1  Resolved: 

  
That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 
Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/eu-exit-working-group


Greater London Authority 
EU Exit Working Group 

Wednesday 28 November 2018 

 

 
 

3   Minutes (Item 3) 

 
3.1 Resolved: 
  

That the minutes of the meetings of the EU Exit Working Group held on 
25 October 2018 and 30 October 2018 be signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 
4   Summary List of Actions (Item 4) 

 
4.1 The Working Group received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 
4.2 Resolved: 
 

That the outstanding actions arising from previous meetings be noted. 

 
 
5   The Future Status of EU Nationals; Deal or No-Deal (Item 5) 

 
5.1  The Working Group received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as 

background to a discussion with the following invited guests on the future status of EU 
nationals post-Brexit: 

 Professor Charlotte O’Brien, York Law School; 

 Christopher Desira, Director, Seraphus; and 

 Sunder Katwala, Director, British Future. 

 

5.2 A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1.  
 
5.3 ‘EU Citizens’ Rights and Settled Status’, provided by Seraphus, is attached at Appendix 2.  
 
5.4  Resolved:  
 

(a) That the report and the discussion be noted; and 
 

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chair, in consultation with party Group 
Lead Members, to agree an output from the discussion and the previous 
meetings of the Working Group in October 2018. 

 
 
6   Date of Next Meeting (Item 6) 

 
6.1 The next meeting of the Working Group was scheduled for Wednesday,  

13 February 2019 in Committee Room 4, City Hall.  

 
 
 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
EU Exit Working Group 

Wednesday 28 November 2018 

 

 
 

7   Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Item 7) 

 
7.1 There was no urgent business. 

 
 
8   Close of Meeting 

 
8.1 The meeting ended at 3.45pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Chair  Date 
 
Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant; Telephone: 020 7983 4383  

Email: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

 
 

Appendix 1 

 

 EU Exit Working Group – Wednesday, 28 November 2018 
 

Transcript of Item 5 - The Future Status of EU Nationals; Deal or No-Deal 
 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Can I move to item 5 on the future status of European Union (EU) nationals, deal or 

no deal?  I would like to welcome to this session our guests, who are going to be making some statements as 

well as answering some of our questions.  Welcome to Professor Charlotte O’Brien from York Law School; 

Christopher Desira, Director of Seraphus; and Sunder Katwala, whom we have met before, Director of British 

Future.  Welcome back before us if you have given evidence as well. 

 

If I can begin, this is an extremely complex issue and we will never be able to give it the real time and justice it 

requires.  It is an incredibly sensitive issue.  We have had information.  In fact, some of you have participated in 

previous meetings when we have thought immediately after that, actually, we could see light at the end of the 

tunnel.  Then I should not be amazed in terms of how this country goes about its business.  Things move.  The 

goalposts get moved.  Other issues are introduced and it becomes a little bit more vague and a little bit 

unclear. 

 

I am remembering against the background we are talking about people, people’s lives and people’s families.  

We are very conscious as [London Assembly] Members of what we are talking about, and sometimes we can be 

bogged down in procedures and not think about the human side of this conversation that we are about to 

begin. 

 

Do you wish to make an opening statement or should we go straight into questions?  What would you prefer? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Questions. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Questions is fine. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  Yes, I am happy with that. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  OK.  If we can then begin in terms of the first set of questions, which are going to 

come from me, it concerns issues around some things we are assuming that may happen in terms of withdrawal 

agreements, etc.  Charlotte, to you first: can you set out for us what the Withdrawal Agreement says about the 

future status of EU nationals in the United Kingdom (UK), just to set the scene for us? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Yes.  It is important to bear in mind first of all that there 

are two different sets of proposals that are in play here.  There is the EU-UK Withdrawal Agreement and then 

there is the UK’s own proposals set out in its statement of intent to do with settled status. 

 

Just focusing on the Withdrawal Agreement for the moment, the bit that would have some degree of 

international enforceability, it does not contain very many surprises from a citizens’ rights perspective because 

it mostly reproduces those provided for in the March [2018] draft.  What it provides for is the continued rights 

of EU citizens in the UK or UK citizens in the EU who have taken up residence or taken up work before the end 

of the transition period.  It is about pre-existing rights continuing rather than future rights, as such. 

 

Page 9



 

 
 

One of the big concerns that I have expressed in the past, which is reintroduced in this iteration, is that those 

rights are still attached to, and very dependent on, showing that you are exercising a right to reside under 

[Citizens’ Rights] Directive 2004/38.  That typically means that you are working or that you have been 

working, showing that you have been economically active or connected to someone who has been 

economically active.  That is just in order to stay or to claim permanent residence, which is akin to the UK’s 

settled status suggestion, to have been exercising that right for five continuous years. 

 

Now, what is unsurprising is that it reproduces the conditions for a right to reside that exist currently, but the 

difference is in the consequences.  Currently, what it means to show that you are exercising a right to reside 

under EU law is to have entitlement to equal treatment and access to benefits, and those conditions exist to 

stop benefit tourism, essentially.  Now, what we are looking at is a situation where that mechanism, which is 

problematic enough for allocating a right to reside for access to benefits, is being used and transplanted to 

decide a person’s entitlement to stay in the place that they have made their home.  That means there are more 

dramatic consequences as a result of failing to exercise the right to reside. 

 

If you are in and out of work, you suddenly lose that protection.  Where are you in the Withdrawal Agreement 

if you cease to be exercising your right to reside with one reason or another?  There are some very good 

reasons.  Benefit tourists are the tiny minority of the people who are outwith the scope of right to reside at any 

one point.  There are people who are in and out of work, are on short-term contracts or may have hours that 

go up and down.  There are people who take time out of work for care reasons and that is the big group, 

women in particular, who are disproportionately represented amongst that group caring for children or caring 

for older relatives.  Some of them are very long-term residents as well. 

 

In the work that I have been doing with EU nationals in the context of claiming welfare benefits, this right-to-

reside construct has excluded some very long-term residents, often disproportionately women who may have 

been in the UK for decades but, if they have married a UK national rather than an EU national worker, then 

they are not exercising the right to reside and have not clocked at permanent residence.  If they have been a 

homemaker or if they have been supporting their UK national spouse with self-employment, then they are not 

clocking up the five years necessary for a right to reside.  If several decades down the line their spouse gets ill 

or dies and they need some welfare support, they are not entitled to it.  As I say, the consequences will be 

more dramatic.  It is not about not having welfare support; it is suddenly not having an entitlement to stay in 

the UK, where they have been for many years. 

 

It affects children very disproportionately because children have no means to independently, in their own right, 

exercise a right to reside under [Directive] 2004/38.  They only exist in that Directive only as migrant parasites.  

They only exist insofar as they are related to a parent who is exercising the right to reside.  If they cannot show 

evidence of that for one reason or another or if their parent has employment misfortunes or whatever, the 

child has no means to exercise that right to reside in their own right.  If they are a child in care, how are they 

going to show that connection?  If they are a child who has been removed from a parent because of a 

domestic abuse situation, how are they going to show what their parent is or was doing? 

 

There was a case a couple of years ago now on the right to reside, again in a welfare benefit context, dealing 

with a 17-year-old child who was a Portuguese national born in the UK.  She had lived in the UK all of her life 

and was abandoned by her mother at the age of 16.  Her mother went to a third country and so there was no 

EU country for this child to go ‘home’ to, in inverted commas.  At the age of 17, she claimed income support 

and was found not to have a right to reside.  Under the Withdrawal Agreement, what that would mean is she 

would be expected to leave the country that she had grown up in and had never been anywhere else. 

 

Page 10



 

 
 

The right-to-reside construct is totally impervious to questions of social integration, language, family, friends 

and so on and so forth.  It is all about showing that you are exercising the rights under [Directive] 2004/38.  

Of course, under international human rights law, we do not expect children to have been working for five years 

and we should not.  Yet somehow, because they have not done that, they have no means of having the right 

to reside. 

 

The Withdrawal Agreement is potentially very exclusionary and myopic in a way in terms of the swathes of 

people who will fall through the gaps because there are massive gaps: care gaps, domestic abuse gaps.  Women 

who have had to be relocated and as a consequence they have suffered a punctuated employment history and 

do not have a permanent right to reside of five years.  There are long-term residents I have worked with, 

women who have been in the UK for decades.  There was a case in the UK, a tribunal of a woman who had 

been in the UK for more than 33 years but, because she had married a UK national, she had not accrued a right 

to reside in her own right.  She had no right to reside.  People with disabilities are more likely to be 

disproportionately affected.  There is a whole raft of gaps in there. 

 

There is another potentially significant gap in the Withdrawal Agreement but it is difficult to know how to 

interpret this.  A group of carers who do have a right to reside under EU law are known as ‘Teixeira carers’.  

There was a case in the Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU) that found that the child of an EU 

national worker or a former EU national worker has a continued right to reside in the host state to continue 

their education and, for that to be a meaningful right, their primary carer has to have a right to reside.  They 

are Teixeira carers.  They appear to be included up to a point in the Withdrawal Agreement under article 24.  

They will continue to have the right to reside in the event that that the EU migrant worker parent has left the 

UK.  That is one scenario in which Teixeira rights kick in.  The other scenario is where the EU migrant worker 

parent ceases work and that is not explicitly covered in article 24(2).  I am not sure why 24(2) exists if other 

than to create that exclusion.  In theory because the case law of the CJEU is meant to continue to apply and in 

theory because the relevant regulation is meant to continue to apply, all Teixeira carers should be covered, but 

this particular provision seems to suggest that it is only some who will be favoured and some who will not.  The 

ones where the EU migrant worker parent has ceased work are not explicitly covered in this provision, which 

could be problematic. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Do you think that if there is a deal done, there is either going to be supplementary 

advice covering these areas or we are back in the courts?  We would be straightforwardly not back in the courts 

because it seems it is deliberately not mentioned because there is no right.  Is that what you think will happen 

if there was a deal done?  In those areas that you have outlined and some of these gaps, these areas where 

there is no explicit provision, it is either a free-for-all or open to interpretation. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  It seems to be then just down to domestic preference, 

really.  We have the UK proposals, which would appear on the face of it to cover a lot of these people because 

they just asked for residence; they do not ask for evidence that someone has been exercising a right to reside. 

 

There are a number of problems with this.  First of all, if you are relying just on domestic preference, then that 

is subject to the whim of the executive or whoever is in charge of writing the regulations at the time.  It is 

amendable.  It is also not enforceable at an EU level.  The EU has cut these people loose, effectively, according 

to this Withdrawal Agreement.  It means that there will be a patchwork of rights across different member states 

according to what other member states choose to do about the UK nationals in these situations there. 

 

Another problem with the UK proposals is, first of all, the hard deadline [of the settled and pre-settled status 

for EU citizens and their families] that appears to be suggested, which would mean that while a lot of these 

Page 11



 

 
 

people would have an underlying right to settled status, they may not in effect realise that right because they 

miss the deadline or because they are in a vulnerable situation and do not know that the scheme exists, do not 

know how to apply or do not have the support to apply for it.  Who is going to take responsibility for making 

sure children in care get registered? 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Christopher and Sunder, do you want to add to that or do you want to highlight 

something a bit further?  I want to thank you, Christopher, for the additional information and the flowcharts of 

the complexities of the issues.  We will record that formally into our evidence. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  Just to build on what Professor O’Brien has been saying, there 

are 3.5 million to 4 million people, maybe a third of them in London, in the UK and then there are the British 

nationals out there in the EU.  The Withdrawal Agreement, if we get the deal, will be the Withdrawal 

Agreement.  There will then be some oversight rights of the CJEU for eight years beyond that and so on. 

 

Then you have national policy and, in this respect, national policy based on what the UK Government is saying 

is offering reassuring language and, therefore, we have to look at the delivery.  There might be other 

challenges for people in other countries as to whether all the gaps are filled.  Therefore, on the question in 

terms of the UK policy, the biggest thing that the UK policy does on a voluntary basis, not in the Withdrawal 

Agreement, is that it does not now look for the comprehensive sickness insurance (CSI). 

 

We have been seeing - and we are still getting refusals - a quarter of [CSI] cases refused.  There is a very good 

case to say that we should have a moratorium on refusals now in this period because it must be quite worrying 

to be getting refusals.  We are looking for a 99% or 100% acceptance rate very soon.  Should we still have a 

25% refusal rate?  There is very low trust.  There is a Government saying very reassuring things, “We want to 

cover everybody”, and very low trust in the client group because of the politics of this, and so there are those 

refusals. 

 

What is a reasonable ground to refuse?  The Government has a couple that would be broadly accepted.  One is 

serious criminality above the criminal threshold that already applies to EU citizens.  That seems fair.  There may 

be people with some criminal history that is not at that level at all and who do not know that it is not at that 

level, do not apply and so on, but serious criminality, identity fraud, not being who you say and not being 

resident here at all are the reasonable grounds of refusal. 

 

The UK Government is saying, “Residence is what we are looking for and, therefore, that higher threshold is 

not what we are looking for”. What we now need to look at is: if that is what gets applied; if that is what 

people know will be applied; and if the people who could apply under that basis then apply; or if something 

else happens.  Do you get exploited by somebody else?  Do you pay many thousands of pounds to somebody 

else for advice if you have been working cash-in-hand because you assume you will be refused?  What are our 

communications and advice like? 

 

Thinking about this big group of 3.5 million to 4 million people, it is quite probable that the Government, 

employers, other people, the computer systems that have been set up, assuming they work well -- it is quite 

probable that there are going to be multiple routes to about 2 million of these people and that we will keep 

finding the same 2 million people.  If you have been in work, if you have good tax records, if you have been 

employed in the public sector and so on, we will keep finding two thirds of the group very easily, and they may 

or may not often be the people whom it is easiest to communicate with about, “This is about you”.  The groups 

to worry about are the people who will just have less footprint on the systems and might not have met the old 

Page 12



 

 
 

tests of the Directive but would if they knew it meet the test of you are resident and you are really who you 

say you are to get into the system. 

 

The bar, in theory, is set very low for presettled status.  I might have been here 20 years and have very little 

evidence of it, but you know I am here.  Then I will get presettled status.  I will get the right to build up five 

years.  If we have a lot of people in that box who have been here a long time, then we will have a very big 

problem in five years’ time and will have to keep our eye on that.  There will be other people who have been 

here more than 20 years.  There might be 300,000 like that.  You might think this is for the people who arrived 

in the last ten years.  You might not know that if you are a child and so on. 

 

There might be 1 million people who, unless we get good advice to them, will not know this is for them and 

there might be other people, for example, who think, “I have a very patchy employment record.  My employer 

has not been paying tax.  I had better not apply”.  There is a very big group that we need to worry about 

whether they will get through the system. 

 

There is another issue, which is whether the refusal rate will be below 1% and also what pace of applications 

we are expecting.  We have never seen 4 million people apply for something in a two-and-a-half-year period 

and so we do not know whether we are ahead or behind.  If we got 95% of this right by the middle of 2021, 

we would all be reasonably relieved to find that we have done that.  That will take a lot of investment and a lot 

of resource. 

 

That would mean that 200,000 people did not have the status that they would have been entitled to and, 

therefore, from the start we need a sense that we are going to think about if you are eligible.  At the moment 

the thing says, “Did you have a good reason not to apply?”  I am not sure you need a particularly good reason 

not to apply; you need an eligibility for the scheme.  There is bound to be a problem at the end with 100,000, 

150,000 or 200,000 people if 95% of this went well and we ought to have a sensible policy at that stage.  If 

that problem is 400,000, 500,000 or 600,000, then we have a much bigger problem. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Yes, the Home Office’s message and communication is that this 

is quite simple and residence and identity and undergoing criminality checks are the steps you need to do to 

achieve your residence. 

 

However, there is some devil in the detail.  They published the suitability requirements just over a week ago 

and that allows the Home Office, if it so chooses to do so, to assess under current EU law and the European 

Economic Area (EEA) regulations whether someone is working or exercising treaty rights or not.  Therefore, it 

is not purely residence.  What the suitability guidance tells us is that if someone applies and is not in work or 

has never worked at all and they provide the evidence of residence for five years and that application goes into 

the settled status team, the settled status team will then review the application and see that that person has 

not exercised any treaty rights or has not worked at all for five years.  They can then pause the settled status 

application and then, in consultation with a senior caseworker or the European migration policy team, they can 

decide whether enforcement is required under current EEA regulations on the non-exercise of treaty rights. 

 

What will happen is someone applies because they are not working and the general caseworker level sees that 

they are not working and asks a senior caseworker, “What do we do in this scenario?”  They, in consultation 

with the other team, decide, “They have never worked.  Maybe then we need to consider whether removal 

should be instigated under the current EEA regulations”.  The settled status will pause, the EEA regulations will 

kick in and they may consider issuing a removal decision because of the non-exercise of treaty rights.  Then 

the settled status application will restart and will be refused because a removal decision is now valid and active 

Page 13



 

 
 

before the decision on settled status is made.  The applicant will then receive a refusal of a settled status 

application and also a removal decision and will have to then challenge the removal decision before they can 

challenge the settled status application. 

 

Therefore, residence is the main requirement, but the Home Office has the power to choose whether to 

instigate removal on non-exercise of treaty rights or misuse of rights still. 

 

What we do not know is who they are going to exercise that power against.  Is it going to be a 25-year-old 

Eastern European man who has never worked or is it going to be a single mother who has had to stop working 

to look after her two children?  If it is applied to everyone equally, then fair enough.  EU law still exists until 

the end of the transition period and the Home Office has the right to exercise that power.  If it is applied 

indiscriminately or targets individual groups, which it has done in the past, then we have a major problem on 

our hands. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  What we would like, then, is some clear language and some 

policy to go with it about why and when that will be applied exceptionally, as opposed to in a broader sense, 

because there is a clash between doing that and saying, “The test is identity, residence and not having serious 

criminality”.  If you are applying that, then you should not be doing this and there are exceptional public 

danger criminality reasons to do it. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The Home Office published a caseworker guidance for the 

caseworkers but we have never seen the senior caseworker guidance.  We never see that technical decision-

making on those detailed cases.  Maybe, if that is published, we can have a clear and transparent idea of what 

they intend to do with those complex cases.  Through the European Commission (EC) we have asked for that 

guidance.  It has never been supplied, only the caseworker-level guidance, which only covers straightforward 

cases, which would be the majority of those who are in work and can work. 

 

We also do not have answers about whether the Home Office will disclose information to other Government 

departments or third parties.  They say they can when the settled status email is issued to people during the 

testing phase.  They receive an email saying, “You have settled status.  These are your rights.  This is how it will 

work.  Also, we may share data with other third parties”. 

 

My worry as well in another group is, if someone who has made a settled status application on the basis that 

they are employed and they provide their payslips and P60s and everything in the application and indicate that 

they are in employment and then the application checks with Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) and 

HMRC comes back and says, “We have no records of this guy being in existence”, because maybe the employer 

it is not paying taxes and taking advantage of the employee, will the Home Office, when the inconsistent data 

from HMRC is discovered, then disclose that information to HMRC that this is a person who may not be 

working or their employer has not paid any taxes on their behalf?  We do not know how data is going to be 

shared with other Government departments or even third parties. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Thank you for that in terms of setting the scene and the complexity of the issues 

that need to be dealt with or thought about.  Are there any questions before we move on to the next section 

on this part of the questioning?   

 

Caroline Russell AM:  I just wanted to pick up on the children again, just to clarify.  If you are saying that 

they have to be working for five years and if you assume people are at school until they are 18, then no one 

will have worked for five years until they are about 23 or 24 maybe, and so we are talking about a big chunk of 

Page 14



 

 
 

young people who could have grown up in this country and suddenly find that they do not have settled status 

here. 

 

Does that mean that they would potentially just have to leave, in which case, do we have a sense of how many 

of those young people there are? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  According to the Withdrawal Agreement, yes, there 

would be a large number of children who would not have an entitlement to stay in the UK either because they 

themselves have not been exercising a right to reside under [Directive] 2004/38, like working, or because their 

parents have not been.  They may have had a Teixeira carer parent but Teixeira rights do not accrue or clock up 

the five years for permanent residence.  When they would be assessed as to whether or not they fall within the 

scope of the Withdrawal Agreement, they will be found not to be exercising their rights in accordance with the 

Directive and therefore would not have an entitlement to stay. 

 

Under the UK proposals it would be different because of the concern of residence rather than exercising the 

right to reside.  If the UK proposals survive intact and all that is asked is whether you have been resident for 

five years, then a lot of children would be, in theory, in the clear.  Of course they could also potentially fall foul 

of the rule because they have not been exercising the right to reside.  Therefore, there is this inherent 

contradiction in the UK proposals saying, “We are not looking for you to have exercised a right to reside but, if 

you are not exercising your right to reside, we might remove you”. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  I am not sure whether that is a contradiction.  Under UK policy, 

the answer is that they are all supposed to be covered.  Either you are eligible if you are attached to a person 

who is eligible for settled status or, if you are not attached to a person who is eligible for settled status but you 

are resident in this country, you are eligible and so on.  There is a range of risks if you are attached to a person 

who might be removed for some other reason.  I would say it is a different level of risk once we are in the UK 

policy.  What it is meant to do is cover them all. 

 

Whom might it not cover?  Three hundred thousand of these children were born in Britain and there might be 

a belief that they are already covered because they were born in Britain, but it depends what year they were 

born, whether they were registered, whether they are in the system.  There might be parents with British-born 

children and the rules have changed at different times and they might not register their own children.  What 

would we do?  However, there is no doubt under the UK policy that it is supposed to cover all the groups and 

then it is making specific -- children in care are the responsibility of councils and so on. 

 

Whether or not people know what they are meant to do is probably a bigger thing than whether they are 

eligible at all. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  It is not so much deliberate.  It is a gap that exists and that is a risk but it is not 

deliberately trying to get -- 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  The UK policy fills a gap that the Withdrawal Agreement would 

not, but this then is for the UK Government and the UK courts under the domestic law when it is passed, not 

the EU treaty, because it is up to the nation state to augment EU law and directives, that is what Britain -- 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  OK.  I am finding all of this really confusing and complicated.  I have a lot of friends in 

this country who are EU citizens and who have children born and brought up in this country.  I am hearing 

from constituents and friends of their concerns and people are worried about falling between these gaps. 

Page 15



 

 
 

 

I am just wondering what information is out there to help people navigate their way through all of this.  Is 

there information out there?  If there is not, who do you think should be producing it? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The Greater London Authority (GLA) has its portal on citizens’ 

rights and we have a guide, some questions and scenarios on there and referrals to any organisations that can 

give advice.  That is fairly new. 

 

Then the European Commission Representation Office in London has published a question-and-answer (Q&A) 

document on the process and settled status and scenario questions on a range of topics like, “I am European 

but my Brazilian wife is here.  Can she stay with me?”  There is that information there. 

 

They are also providing information services in partnership with a range of lawyers.  They provide public 

seminar sessions, which we have participated in, and open Q&A sessions for citizens as well.  Some of those 

have been livestreamed.  What they intend to do beyond January [2019] on this is to try to get a more 

centralised information portal, similar to the GLA one but on a national scale, which will have the same 

information available and recommendations on whom to seek advice from, not-for-profit organisations, and 

also to try to centralise those information sessions because a whole range of organisations are providing them.  

We can have some central database that people can log into, put the postcode in and find out where the next 

information session is that they can attend for free.  They are working on trying to build that up a bit more. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Who is “they”? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The European Commission Representation Office.  Our firm has 

contracted with them at least up until March next year [2019] to provide that.  The Law Centres Network is 

providing similar things in partnership with the EC.  They focus on charities and voluntary groups who want to 

set up these information sessions.  We work in partnership with the Commission and with embassies that want 

to set up these sessions.  The embassies have set up over 70 of these sessions and we have participated in 

them all across the UK including Northern Ireland. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  One of the gaps that may appear in terms of that provision of information, if things 

ever do become clearer, may be for employers.  We need to get to employers to carry out some responsibilities 

for their employees and not only brief themselves up on good advice but also the individuals.  That could be 

one of the things that we suggest that the Mayor ought to concentrate on in London so that we get this out to 

employers as far and wide as possible.   

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  I was going to say that there have been employers who attend 

these sessions and they have also then been encouraged to hold their own sessions and so have done similar 

sessions for their employees.  That is a good way of doing that.  It is also good public relations for the 

employers.  They can tell their staff, “We want to look after you.  We want you to stay”.  Frankly, it is quite 

cost-effective for them, rather than losing staff and having to hire and retrain staff again. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Again, that is talking about bigger employers rather than the smaller. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Even for smaller employers the cost of maybe having a lawyer 

present if they do not want to do it themselves is going to be smaller compared to having to recruit and retrain 

people. 

 

Page 16



 

 
 

The Home Office is also preparing lots of communication materials as well.  There is an employer’s toolkit, 

which is available publicly and which is being reformatted for charities and not-for-profits so that they can 

have something to distribute as well. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Do you know when that is available? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The employer’s toolkit is available.  I am not sure of the 

availability date for the repackaged one for charities and advisers. 

 

The Home Office has worked up a communication model and is providing all these pamphlets, but the next 

stage of that is to then communicate this to everyone who gives advice to EU citizens, to make themselves 

known to the Home Office so that the Home Office can have a map of who gives advice and the extent of the 

advice and allow those organisations then to order all of these pamphlets and leaflets and information so they 

can then be distributed on to the advice sector. 

 

It still falls short of what I think that the Home Office should do and because the campaign model was not 

really going to reach all of the vulnerable groups, those with dependency needs, those who are in close-knit 

communities.  They really need to start thinking about more traditional advertising models like television, radio 

and so on to really access people where they engage with communications.  At the moment the 

communication is mainly online, like putting adverts in Spotify.  Frankly, that might capture a few people but it 

is not going to capture all the people who are going to be vulnerable in this process. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  There is going to be a significant amount of communication.  

There is a plan for a significant amount of communication and there is a significant number of stakeholders 

that want to be involved in that.  Employers have been very keen to be seen to be involved.  They are being 

ethical.  They have an interest in doing it.  The Government itself will do it. 

 

There are a couple of complications about getting this right.  Firstly, however much you do, it needs to be 

systemic and it needs to be sustained, and maybe it will never be enough but actually a lot of people are going 

to step up and in a way reach the two thirds of people that we will find relatively easy to reach.  That is the 

first challenge: that a lot of the energy might be attached at the relatively above-the-line groups and therefore 

just make sure there is energy going to the harder groups.  Embassies will be doing things; employers will be 

doing things and so on.  It might be at the higher end of the labour market and the firms that feel they have a 

reputational advantage.  We might particularly want the low end of the labour market to be as engaged.  There 

will also be things in different languages through embassies and so on. 

 

There is some money being spent but, if you looked at it, you would say that it does not sound very much.  

There is £9 million pounds going to non-governmental organisations and civic groups to reach harder-to-reach 

audiences.   If you have a list of 50 different harder-to-reach audiences, then that is the challenge.  While 

there will be a lot of communication in general, it will need to be worked out how it gets to the more 

vulnerable groups. 

 

The other thing is that the message really needs to be very simple and we need to have a strategy here of 

vigilance without alarmism.  The simple message is: here is the information; everybody should be eligible; you 

are eligible; here is what you do.  You all need to apply.  If you have permanent status already, you need to 

swap it over; it does not cost you anything.  There is a level of detail but it is like engaging with the system.  

When people do engage with it, if it goes well, they might find it surprisingly less complicated than they were 

expecting a Home Office system to be, because it is. 

Page 17



 

 
 

 

Then there is this other set of issues when we are all keeping an eye on the policy gaps, etc.  We need to keep 

that away.  We cannot have a complacent message, “You will all be fine”.  We do not know that, but we cannot 

have, “There are lots of ways you might worry about it”, because there is very low trust and there is very high 

concern.  If they roll out the system and it does not fall over, then most people should find that they are able 

to engage with the system, say who they are and get a decision.  We should worry a lot about the reach out 

there, but we should separate our policy worries, about whether we are going to reach the last 500,000 or 

1 million people, and how we are all very worried about trust in the Home Office.  That is already there.  The 

GLA needs to think as well about communicating very simply, “Here is the information.  Here is what you do.  

Here is how long you have”. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  We will move on from that.  Has there been any conversation - it is not perfect - the 

electoral registration system will record some EU nationals for the purpose of voting so that they can vote in 

regional and local government elections.  Has anyone talked about using that list to contact people, with the 

right message of course?  Has no one raised that? 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  No, not that I am aware of. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  OK.  We might try to look at that.  It is not perfect.  It will not reach everybody.  It is 

particularly imperfect in transient areas.  Where it is more settled, people will be on there.   

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Just going back to this information, is the GLA portal easy to use?  Does that fit the 

bill?  I am sorry.  I have not looked at it. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  It is still not as simple as we would want it to be.  The Home 

Office publications, from a lawyer’s perspective, are a bit too simple but I am a lawyer and I know the detail 

and all of this.  They are probably simple enough for those people we are worried about to understand.  For 

example, I attend these information sessions and give these seminars out and I am still surprised, even as near 

as last week, that some people still have that disconnect between Brexit and actually having to secure their 

residence in the future to continue residing here.  There is even that level of basic understanding that we need 

to reach. 

 

Home Office materials might be useful.  Maybe it is an idea that maybe we can have them available to social 

services, to hospitals and emergency wards, to anyone who may come into contact with those who are maybe 

not employed, so that anyone who finds an EU citizen can say, “You are an EU citizen.  Here is a leaflet.  It has 

nothing to do with what you came to see us about but read this.  It may be relevant to you”.  Getting that 

material out to people in all of those places might be just an idea. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  That is certainly something we can talk to the Mayor about.  Moving on, looking at the 

future systems, the Government has been very clear that after the transition period has ended, there will be a 

new immigration system and that the freedom of movement between the UK and the EU will come to an end.  

First of all, to Charlotte and Christopher, after leaving the EU, what would the UK’s new immigration system 

look like and what would it mean for EU nationals wanting to come to the UK to work? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  In a word, there is a risk that it will look messy.  Bearing 

in mind that we will still have EU nationals in the UK subject to a new-old regime and then new arrivals subject 

to a new-new regime, we will have multiple parallel immigration regimes with different entitlements, running 

Page 18



 

 
 

simultaneously, with different evidential requirements, with different procedures, all being processed by the 

same overstretched department in fairly short turnaround times, with different enforcement procedures. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  You say “overstretched department”.  Just thinking back a step to the people we were 

talking about before, the current people here, there was a sense that it was going to be quite straightforward 

to deal with the majority and there was just going to be the 200,000 or so people whom it would be hard to 

find.  Do we think there is capacity to process the people who are here before we even think about the new 

system or do we think those workers are going to be very stretched in order to deal with that? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The Home Office intends to make the application online and 

fairly automated with residence checks with HMRC and the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and 

having identity checks with mobile apps.  It really intends the system to be as automated as possible without 

any human interaction for those straightforward cases that tick all the boxes and have all the evidence.  

Hopefully, the system will then process those without much hassle and will then start achieving high 

workflows. 

 

However, then the problem is going to arise when people need to scan and upload additional residence 

evidence or do not have a national ID document to confirm they are a European citizen or have criminal 

offences.  When there needs to be then human interaction and caseworker involvement in the cases, things 

slow down substantially at the Home Office, as they do now. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  We would estimate that group might be 10% or it might be 

30%.  The biggest thing that will make a difference to it going right or going wrong is the recruitment and 

training of the staff who will be doing the human bit.  It will be brilliant if the computers do 2 million of them 

without needing a lot of things, but the human bit is very important.  They say they are aware of that, but this 

is exactly the National Audit Office and immigration inspector and parliamentary scrutiny and GLA scrutiny 

kind of question: do we have the right people? 

 

When they give a cert, they should be very transparent about the data, how many people applied, what the 

acceptance rate was, what the timescales were.  I do not think they have said yet, but if they are clear, “We are 

expecting a 10-day turnaround”, or whatever it is and they are delivering it or are not delivering it. We should 

know a lot two quarters in because there should be quite a rush about whether the system appears to be 

adequate to the first few hundred thousand it received or the system is already looking not really up to the job. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Thank you. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  It is worth noting that according to the technical note 

issued about this time last year, the Home Office was promising a greater degree of human interaction on 

those cases that required it than currently happens at the moment.  There would be more exercising discretion 

and giving claimants the benefit of the doubt and involving an extra layer of dialogue by getting back in touch 

with claimants if there is a problem with some of the evidence and advising them what to do instead.  This is 

stuff that does not happen now.  When you are dealing with potentially a bigger flow or a bigger caseload in a 

short period of time, there is a risk that those promises are not terribly plausible, especially bearing in mind the 

evidence that was given by the former head of immigration enforcement to the Home Affairs Select Committee 

last year [2017] that the Department was like an ineffective sausage factory with low-grade staff.  Unless there 

is a very significant planned improvement in how cases are processed when that human interaction is involved, 

then there is a very significant risk that things are going to go wrong and not get the attention they require. 

 

Page 19



 

 
 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  The part where the language is reassuring is that the plan is to 

have specific capacity to do that and there is a lot of warm words.  It is called a ‘customer resolution centre’.  

There is a lot of language that says, “This is here to get you through”.  In some ways, if you want to be cynical 

about it, you would say that it is almost like you are creating teams to say, “Do not act in the ways we always 

act.  Do the opposite.  That is the policy.  You are the team.  You are the team to approve people.  You are the 

team to not refuse them.  You are the team to get back to people and say that”. 

 

There ought to be an opportunity then to say, “If that worked, is there a culture change opportunity for the 

future system?”  However, the first point is whether there is specific dedicated capacity and whether it is doing 

what we were told, which is that it is there to say yes to people and to check what else they need to say yes. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Did you say that two quarters into this we would start to get a sense of it? 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  We will get data straight away, but have indicators so we know 

what we expect.  Someone said, “It is a unique situation.  Who knows how big the rush should be?  Maybe we 

are behind for good reasons”.  Let us set some indicators, especially when we get to the end of the two-year or 

two-and-a-half-year period.  If we are not at 75% of cases through and processed with six months to go, we 

should already have said, “It needs to be kicked on a year”, at that point.  We do not want to say that at the 

start.  We want to have a deadline when people would apply so that they apply, but we should already know.  

We should not be saying, “There is a rush at the start.  We are hoping for an even bigger rush at the end.  You 

are right.  There are 1.5 million cases missing”.  It does not sound very good.  We should have a reasonable 

sense of what on course would look like and whether there is already a sense that the remedies for not being 

on course are extending the timeline, spending more money and investing in the system. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  There are two separate variables here.  There is the 

processing time, which, as you say, we can get from the data, but then there is the question of application 

flow, which is very difficult to predict.  To what degree are people going to think, “I have two years.  I do not 

need to apply straight away”. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The Home Office is going to publish application processing times 

online and so we will have that data, but what we should encourage the Home Office to do is to publish 

engagement with that and how many people have applied so that it is quite transparent to everyone and where 

we are at that stage.  With six months to go, if only 75% of people have applied, there needs to be a 

considerable amount of planning to stop 25% or 30% going unlawfully resident at the end of the deadline.  

That will need to be continuously assessed.  I am sure the Home Office will assess it, but it is wise for that data 

to be publicly available. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Do the two years start on 29 March [2019] or have they started? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The transition period ends on 31 December 2020 and then we 

have that six-month grace period for people to apply.  The transition period ends on 31 December 2020 and 

then -- 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  If there is a transition period. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Assuming there is a transition period and then -- 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  In the event of no deal -- 

Page 20



 

 
 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  In the event of no deal, there is not a transition period.  

What period of time are they aiming for? 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  1 July 2021 is the date. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Yes. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):   It is not widely understood that the transition period and the 

settled status registration period are not the same thing.  They happen to be running over the same two years.  

They are completely different.  In a no-deal scenario - and the Government does not want to admit this even in 

a deal scenario - the Government will not be able to have immigration controls until 1 July 2021.  If it tries to 

have them or it does not admit this, it will create an enormous catastrophe with lawyers, landlords, 

discrimination and so on.  At some point in a no-deal scenario, they have to show how they are doing it and 

what they are doing and they will have to say, “People can continue to come in on this basis”, because people 

who are here now have until 1 July 2021 to apply for this scheme and they do not need to have done 

anything.  Therefore, I cannot tell the difference between somebody who has been here from Italy or Poland 

for five years and somebody who arrives tomorrow because the person who has been here five years does not 

need to show me anything.  That is true, deal or no deal. 

 

It is also the case, if you then have a transition period, you have another reason why everything is carrying on 

the same until December 2020.  It covers up that you have to do that.  The Immigration Minister fell over at 

the Home Affairs Select Committee because she did not really want to admit that in the deal or the no-deal 

scenario.  She wanted to say that free movement will have ended on Brexit day, of course, and then what else 

will you have done until 1 July 2021?  You really cannot do anything else and so the grown-up thing is just to 

say, “It will take us time to design our system well.  We have this amount of time.  We will not be telling you 

until this White Paper what it is but let us not create an expectation of changes on Brexit day when you are 

getting changes in July 2021”.  That would calm down the mood for EU nationals themselves and for 

employers asking if there is a cliff edge.  In all of these scenarios, you are not able to have new immigration 

policies until July 2021. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Thinking about the issue about giving information to 

employers to give to their employees, one of the problems we have, particularly if there is a no-deal scenario, is 

that it is not at all clear what the advice to employers is meant to be.  If we look at the exchange between [The 

Rt Hon] Caroline Nokes [MP, Minister of State for Immigration] and [The Rt Hon] Yvette Cooper [MP, Chair of 

the Home Affairs Select Committee], there were a number of contradictions about what employers are 

supposed to be doing in terms of checking whether someone has an entitlement to be in the country based on 

settled status or if they have been resident in the country for five years or if they have only just arrived.  The 

people who are entitled to equal treatment should not be subjected to significant extra checks, but how do 

you know if someone is entitled to equal treatment unless you do those significant extra checks?  One of the 

things that [The Rt Hon] Caroline Nokes [MP] suggested was that they would not be expecting the system to 

be overly rigorously enforced.  You think, “What does that mean?” 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  These people in -- not knowing where they are? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Yes, but at the same time saying, “But we expect 

employers to do adequate checks”.  The message would be incredibly mixed and employers would not really 

know what they were supposed to be doing in terms of checking whether or not people had settled status, or 

Page 21



 

 
 

they might not have the settled status certificate or may have applied for it but not yet received it and they 

have no evidence of that.  They would not be able to produce the single document that should settle the 

question. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Just to be absolutely clear, post 29 March [2019], deal or no-deal, people will still be 

able to come here and they will have until - it looks like - 1 July 2021 in a no-deal situation to sort out their -- 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  The Government then has to pass a law to make that the case.  

The only sensible policy that fits with the Government’s settled status scheme is to say that what we are asking 

employers to do is to look at a European passport or an identity card as they do now.  That is what we can do 

and that is whether they have been here 20 years or whether they are coming in.  The Government would have 

to make provision for that.  If it passes the Withdrawal Agreement Bill, the Withdrawal Agreement Bill will make 

provision for that and the rules will still be the same.  If it has not done that, it will have to make the new rules 

for the first two-and-a-half years so that their scheme works.  Otherwise, the scheme will fall over. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  OK.  Finally, will EU nationals with settled status be affected in any way by the new 

immigration system?  If someone is an EU national with settled status now, is there anything that they need to 

be worried about in relation to the new regime? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  According to the current proposals, once they have 

settled status, that is it, unless they are out of the country for a sufficient period of time to lose that settled 

status.  Of course, subject to the degree to which it is mirrored in the Withdrawal Agreement, there would not 

be supranational enforcement.  There would not be a legal guarantee that the law would not change at some 

point, but that is not the intention at the moment. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  It is more generous than current forms of indefinite leave to 

remain and permanent residence because you can go for a complete period of up to five years without it 

affecting your status.  If you go for a complete period that is over five years, you would then become a new 

person, but for everybody else now it would have been two years.  That is how you then end up back asking 

what you need to apply for. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Yes.  I would say that the Withdrawal Agreement provides that 

protection and the settled status cannot be taken away unless it is for a very specific reason.  There is that 

absence and also criminal offences.  If there is a serious criminal offence, they could lose settled status at that 

point. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  The Withdrawal Agreement protects permanent 

residents, which could be a different thing.  You would not necessarily be entitled, according to EU law, to 

permanent residence even if you have settled status. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The way I see it, if settled status is granted under the draft 

Withdrawal Agreement and if someone then commits an offence post 31 December 2020, after the end of the 

transition period, that offence can be assessed under UK immigration law.  That means that if someone 

commits an offence that then attracts imprisonment of 12 months or more, they move into the automatic 

removal process and so their settled status is at risk then. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  Yes, unless you became a citizen.  If you became a citizen, you 

would then be in the -- 

Page 22



 

 
 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  OK.  Thank you. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  You have already started to touch on some of my areas of questions.  This is so 

complicated.  You are all really deeply involved and have a huge understanding of all of this.  My questions are 

around no-deal and you have already started to touch on them.  Simply, maybe Charlotte, in the event of  

no-deal, how will the status of EU nationals living in the UK be affected, just in simple terms? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  If there is no deal, there would not be EU-level or 

supranational protection of the status of those EU nationals in the UK or UK nationals in the EU.  There would 

be, potentially, depending on what domestic law is, domestic provision for them.  It is not totally clear.  The UK 

proposals, we are told, are not dependent on there being a deal and yet a lot of the detail in the statement of 

intent appears to presume there is going to be a deal.  There is a risk that those UK proposals will change, will 

shift or will be used as leverage to try to get some sort of reciprocal guarantee, even if it is bilateral guarantees 

from other member states. 

 

There is the possibility of attempting to ringfence the citizens’ rights provisions in the deal if it looks like the 

overall deal is a non-starter.  It might be possible to harvest out the citizens’ rights provisions because they are 

the provisions that receive amongst the quickest degree of agreement.  It is accepted that not having any kind 

of provision and just having a status cliff edge would be a human catastrophe for a lot of people. 

 

There are some legal questions over the possibility of doing that, but it seems entirely plausible that that would 

be advisable rather than having no deal entirely. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  When we have talked to the Home Office about a no-deal 

scenario, they have never really answered the question directly but have always said that the intention is for 

the settled status process to be available whatever the outcome of the negotiations.  They have invested a lot 

of time and money building this toy and they are going to want to use it, essentially. 

 

In a no-deal scenario, if I can guess how it might work, they will still have to implement the European Union 

Withdrawal Act, which brings the current European regulations into domestic law.  The European regulations 

are the things that brought the Citizens’ Rights Directive into UK law.  Once that is there, it gives them the 

legal coverage to say, “Look, this is now the transition period for people to apply for settled status.  In a  

no-deal scenario, you still have to apply for settled status.  This is the deadline to apply for settled status”, and 

so you would still have time to do it and you would have the legal coverage to do it. 

 

My worry in that scenario is that although they will be able to protect some residents’ rights, all the associated 

rights that come with residence might be affected. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Can you give me some examples of what you mean by that? 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Family reunification for family members who are not yet here 

and who cannot enter the UK -- 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  We would lose that, yes. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Yes.  There are social security rights and pension rights as well 

and whether you retain your pension when you go back to Portugal and that pension continues to be 

Page 23



 

 
 

operated.  That will not be available in a no-deal scenario.  The biggest one is family unification rights.  That 

will be the biggest obstacle.  That is where the Home Office might look at the process in a no-deal scenario 

and say, “We were forced to protect these issues under the negotiations but now we have the unilateral power 

to decide what we really want to do”.  There could be other scenarios as well, like the Surinder Singh scenario.  

British nationals who have lived abroad and come back to the UK are able to bring their family over under 

European law. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  In a no-deal scenario, it is really important to ringfence the 

citizens’ deal as a ringfenced deal.  It is difficult to see why there would be an objection on any side to doing 

that.  The UK Government sounds quite open to it but the Mayor, the Assembly and Londoners should be 

looking for both sides to say that. 

 

The reason it works is very important for the Britons in Europe because of 28 sets of bilateral arrangements.  

So much will get lost.  In a way, if the UK Government then did what it should say, there would be some risks 

and losses especially of the appeal rights, but if they implemented the same scheme there would not be.  The 

message would be, “Look, people can argue about the market access and the £39 billion, but that is enough to 

argue about and no one is in a particularly worse position in the poker game other than that they are holding 

4.5 million people to ransom to put that through”.  There is no legal barrier to doing that and that is especially 

important. 

 

However, if you do not do that, the political risks of starting to unpick the deal as opposed to saying, “We 

should do what we said”, are quite high and there should be pressure to, say, introduce it as it was.  You lose 

the legal oversight from the EU-end.  For example, the European Commission is in charge of overseeing it and 

we are creating a new domestic independent monitoring authority that comes into place only in 2024.  We 

need that quicker and so on.   

 

The only, I suppose, politically tempting thing for the UK Government is to do the same thing but with a 

tweak.  They might decide to have a tougher criminal threshold from the start because the criminal thresholds 

for other forms of non-EU migration are tougher than the EU ones.  At some point, they will make that 

transition in the change.  They might change that. 

 

There should be political pressure to say, “If you are sticking to what you said, stick to what you said”, but it is 

so much better to do it on an EU-wide basis than to do it as a domestic law. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  If there is no deal, will it also affect EU nationals’ ability to access things like 

public services, rights to work, rights to remain in the UK?  Would it effectively create a different class of 

citizen? 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  Where it will do 

that is because of confusion and miscommunication and people accidentally breaking the law or deliberately 

breaking the law because people have heard about a no-deal Brexit and they are a landlord and therefore do 

not know if they should rent this house to somebody who is Italian and so on.  There are significant risks with 

people not understanding. 

 

The Government also has to pass a law so that what it wants to be the law is the law and there will be a lot of 

laws to pass in a no-deal scenario, but the big risk is around the communication that nothing has changed.  

You have some hate crime risks there.  You also have just some confusion risks for employers and landlords 

that they are not supposed to be doing that now.  That should not be if the Government is doing what it is 

Page 24



 

 
 

meant to do.  There are no risks to your status if they pass this deal or get it through, but people might not 

understand that. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Do you think that those EU citizens will almost be seen as a different class, 

effectively, because they are just in a different space at that time? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  It is worth bearing in mind that already we have a system 

where EU nationals do have to go through different checks to UK nationals for various kinds of services and to 

show their entitlement to equal treatment and to show they are exercising a treaty right.  Those kinds of 

hurdles do create different administrative experiences and different risks of administrative injustice.  My 

concern is that that will be on a different order of magnitude, particularly if we are in a no-deal scenario and 

the Government is maintaining that employers should be differentiating between new arrivals and people 

subject to the ‘old regime’, in inverted commas, and those entitled to settled status with the bureaucratic 

hurdles that people will have to go through and the checks that they will have to go through.  It is difficult to 

know what they are going to look like, especially if employers are being told on the one hand, “You should not 

be discriminating.  You should not be treating this group of people differently”, but then, “You should be 

treating this group of people differently”.  How do you find out which group they fall into? 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  The additional checks and pressures on employers, as you say, and others. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  A deal will depend upon what status people are deemed 

to have: (a) if they are new arrivals; and (b) if they are people who are already here but do not have settled 

status for one reason or another, or if they are on the pathway to settled status and what it is they are 

supposed to do to maintain entitlement to reside in order to get settled status.  If someone has not registered 

in time, we were just discussing before whether that will mean that they are effectively treated as 

undocumented immigrants subject to the legislation that applies to illegal immigrants?  Will they be subject to 

the hostile environment?  Will they suddenly find that every time they bump into other bits of law they are 

committing criminal offences just because they have not registered? 

 

There is a number of risks of administrative injustice and a number of risks of administrative discrimination, 

some of it inadvertent, some of it out of confusion, some of it potentially because the system almost requires 

it. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Are you concerned at all?  We have seen in recent times the Windrush scandal 

and hostile environment checks destroying lives of people in this country legally.  Are you worried that the 

Government is in such chaos on this that the whole approach risks that there could be a repeat for EU citizens 

being treated in the same way? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  I am concerned, yes, especially on the point of people 

who do not register in time or cannot produce the evidence of their residence for one reason or another or 

they do not have the footprint.  An awful lot seems to be in the pilot scheme based on having what a lot of 

people do not have, a National Insurance number, for one reason or another.  There are people who have been 

trafficked, who have been doing unpaid care work, who have relocated due to domestic abuse, who have 

children and so on.  There is a significant risk of people not meeting that deadline or not having the evidence 

or not having the document that shows their entitlement when push comes to shove, when we reach the Brexit 

point and the end of the transition point. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  These are very vulnerable people. 

Page 25



 

 
 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Yes, including old-age people as well.  I know that Age 

Concern is very concerned about the effect on older vulnerable people, particularly isolated people,  

non-internet-using people.  It is worth noting of course that that has a disproportionate effect on women due 

to our habit of living longer.  Something like 75% of EU nationals over the age of 75 are women in the UK. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  The risk is that there will be a lot of vigilance in the media, in 

politics and so on, and the Government is aware of that and actually under some pressure therefore to not fall 

over.  That is a good thing. 

 

Whether that vigilance is sustained as long as it needs to be -- because this will not be as much of a problem 

next Easter after Brexit when everyone is watching for it.  It will then be a problem in the summer and autumn 

of 2021.  If it becomes a very big problem, it might happen in the summer and autumn of 2026 - because 

people may be on presettled status when they should be on settled status and did not have it - and whether or 

not we have the mechanisms to do that.  It might be that if you have said, “We have a policy of saying, if you 

are eligible, we are quite keen to grant it to you”, and in the end that will be fine, but these are different.  It is 

the sustainedness of it. 

 

The positive side to that is that inventing this scheme is exactly what did not happen in 1971 and 1973.  You 

created a big change in the law and changed people’s status and found out when they retired 40 years later 

and they ended up in another system.  That is why this spring, all of the messages should be about the advice, 

the communication, the support you need to apply and then some real vigilance so that people do not get 

mistreated in it.  We are deciding the scale of the problem two years later, three years later and six years later 

in how much we invest in the reach of the system now. 

 

There is a very big chance that a lot of people will be on presettled status who are not meant to be and that 

nobody will be looking out for them five years down the road. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  I have a concern that there will still be problems years down the 

line.  There are parents who did not register their children under the scheme because they wrongly thought 

their children were British.  Some elderly EU citizens even now are saying, “Why should I get engaged with any 

of this?  I have a passport.  I am allowed to be here.  I have been here for 45 years.  I am not going to do this”.  

Then, when they come to the point in their life when there needs to be a check because they are accessing 

education or healthcare or a reassessment of social services, at that point it is going to be like, “Where is your 

settled status?”  It will be, “I did not need one.  I thought I never needed one”, or, “I did not apply for it 

because I did not really need it”.  That is the problem.  Later on down the line, there are going to be obstacles 

for people if they have not engaged with us. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Yes.  I am looking at the impact of all these changes on community cohesion.  Last 

year, Sunder, you came to our open-mic session and raised a lot of concerns about EU exit and about the 

heightened feeling of them-and-us in UK society.  I am just wondering if you think that that has happened and 

if you think that is getting worse or more evident and, if so, what it is you are looking at to provide evidence of 

that. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  It is hard to gauge and give a definitive answer of it.  I would 

say that the politics of issues like Brexit are now perhaps more polarised at the end of 2018 than they were at, 

say, the end of 2016 and at both ends of the debate, and that has some dangers.  In either, I would say, a no-

deal scenario or possibly a scenario where there was a referendum and some people did not think it should be 

Page 26



 

 
 

happening at all, you might see a more heightened polarisation in the new year, next spring and in the summer 

during these political events.  Just that heightened atmosphere and how that feels on social media might 

affect people in their lives and how they feel. 

 

While those are all legitimate political debates, we should be looking for ways for people of different political 

views and different views of Brexit to try to get some foundations in place about behaviour and hate crime 

types of issues.  We have lost that to a surprising extent.  We have lost the consensus of, whether you are  

left-wing or right-wing, remainer or Brexiteer, hate crime and xenophobia are bad.  We had something, which 

was that all the political advocates on all sides thought all the EU nationals should be allowed to stay, but we 

did not make a quick decision and so people felt very worried about that and felt very bad about that. 

 

In principle, whatever side you are of Brexit or politics, racism and hatred is bad, but we now have a political 

polarisation, for example, about whether that is happening or not or whether liberal people have made up that 

that is happening because they did not like the referendum.  Therefore, other people would say, “I would be 

against if it was happening.  I think you have made it up and you are just trying to put all of that in the 

Guardian”.  We have a job.  Hate crime cannot be a 48% versus 52% issue.  It should be a 90% issue.  We have 

some work to do to separate out, “I did not like your campaign.  You lied on a bus.  Why do you not accept the 

result just because you lost?”  Separate out that stuff from, “Do we have shared norms and agreed norms if 

people get shouted at in the street?”  If it gets that heightened, it is not that most leave voters think it or 

anything, but the 5% of people who do think it start saying, “Why are you still here?  Why are you still in my 

country?  I want a no-deal”.  It will be quite confused in the sense of having a no-deal Brexit and everybody 

has two-and-a-half years to stay and that you have free movement.  That is a surprising thing whichever side 

you are on.  We have lost something really important, which is just the foundational norms against prejudice 

and hate crime to the polarised politics.  We have to keep that out of communities and try to get that back.  

Remain and leave voices deliberately being seen to do that together while having quite big arguments about 

everything would be quite important. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  That requires leadership to do that.  Theresa May’s [Prime 

Minister] comments on queue jumpers did not go down well at all because no one is abusing the system and 

no one is queue jumping and no one is taking advantage.  They are EU citizens who have a right and exercise 

that right to come and choose to live in the UK.  Then to paint EU citizens with that brush, when they are 

neighbours, teachers, nurses, hairdressers, friends, family, and lovers is completely wrong.  That is where the 

rhetoric is coming from.  The leadership tells the general public, “This is how it should be”.  That is the 

message we send. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Is there a sense not just about the messaging because I could even go back further 

thinking that actually this was a settled issue until the words were said at Chequers in shorthand, which took us 

back a step, even though I thought there are lots of grey areas, as you outlined earlier on in your 

presentations.  In the message at this particular time, even with the polarisation where we are, politicians, just 

watch your language because you can either create more anxiety within EU nationals or create more problems 

with those in building up whatever sense of resentment they feel that there is or why they voted or feel 

cheated around that. 

 

Is there a case then of - it is probably the wrong word - honesty with politicians of where we are?  It is quite 

interesting.  There will be a number of people who will feel that this does not represent what they thought was 

going to happen to EU nationals, which has been very clear in the media.  Being a politician and the messaging 

that goes out, you think it is very clear, but when you talk to people on the doorstep it is not very clear about 

what they think your position is or what the reality is and why it is beneficial to this country.  Even though this 

Page 27



 

 
 

does open up a number of issues, with the case that those EU citizens have made a contribution - let us be 

honest here - there is a moral issue why they should stay but there is also a very good UK business case and 

why we are talking about settled status for those here and a different sort of status for people coming in.  That 

is where the honesty is not coming across with politicians.  We do not hear enough in this debate about those 

issues and why they have come to these conclusions.  It will become dressed up as the EU holding something 

over us, when actually the reality is that the negotiators on the UK’s part have realised that actually this is 

where we should be.  We have all seen the dressing up and the spin that goes on about political stances and 

about controlling borders.  Do I have that right?  Am I missing something?  I am a practising politician. 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Part of what of the problem is goes to the fact that there 

is a policy cognitive dissonance here in terms of how we are dressing up future free movement.  We are saying 

we are ending it and therefore justifying it by describing free movement as a problem or a blight, which reflects 

upon the people who have already exercised free movement.  There needs to be greater transparency over that 

dissonance and saying, “Look, this is what we are doing over future free movement because that is what is 

being translated and what is being interpreted as the impetus behind the referendum, but we are embracing 

those people who had, prior to the referendum, prior to Brexit, prior to the end of the transition period, 

exercised those free movement rights and celebrating what they have contributed and will continue to 

contribute”, and justifying it on that basis. 

 

You are quite right that the problem of rhetoric goes back quite some way in that prior to the referendum 

there was a very strong anti-free movement discourse charging the leave campaign and there was not a 

counter narrative from the remain campaign, which focused very much on the overall macroeconomic benefits.  

If you looked at the Stronger In website, there was a whole list of benefits of being in the EU and free 

movement of people was not on that top 10 list.  There was no attempt to engage with that or address it head 

on. 

 

That was problematic because there was an opportunity, regardless of the outcome of the referendum, to try 

to command that narrative a bit more and make it more positive and make it warmer and more welcoming, 

recognising very much the human dimension and tapping into the fact that an awful lot of people, however 

they voted, do like and get on with their neighbours and their colleagues and do not want them to be booted 

out. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  That is why that distinction between the past and the future 

does need to be reciprocated on both sides of politics.  Both sides of the referendum debate have to agree to 

do that and that has been difficult. 

 

I commissioned a poll on the weekend after the referendum and published it a week later.  It was 84% for EU 

nationals staying.  That was 90% of remain voters and 75% of leave voters.  A lot of people were very surprised 

by that.  To some extent, it was the remain liberal newspapers that were as surprised by it as well.  That was 

because there was a principle there, which is that you can have your view about opposition of the EU because 

we had a referendum and you can have a view about policies we might introduce, but you do not change 

people’s lives now.  That is why the ‘queue jumpers’ language is wrong and it is important to apologise, but it 

is also important then for the liberal side to say, “We like free movement and we think it is a mistake to end it”.  

They need to take the deal -- 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Yes, explain the benefits. 

 

Page 28



 

 
 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  -- but they also need to take the deal on separating the past.  

It is a legitimate political position to say, “I want to leave the EU and change the free movement rules and I can 

treat people well”.  You cannot then say, “You are an absolute hypocrite because you cannot do both of those 

things”, because of course you can.  There is a principle of human justice saying that we do not change things 

retrospectively and that future changes are for future people.  You have to take that deal if you want to say, 

“Look, we want to have a fight about the future immigration policy because we would still like it for business 

reasons and so on, but we accept it”.  That is where we need the foundations. 

 

There is a positive thing here.  There are worries about hate crime and there is evidence about hate crime and I 

am sure hate crime is still underreported and there is polarisation around Brexit and politics generally.  There 

has been a big reduction in the heat and temperature of the immigration debate.  The salience has fallen a lot 

and attitudes have warmed up a fair bit.  It is counterintuitive, but it has happened. 

 

Ask the people who have changed their minds why they have changed their minds and there are two different 

reasons of relatively equal weight.  If you are a person who ended up voting remain in the end but you did not 

like free movement that much, you are now warmer to it.  You have seen stories of the 3 million.  You are more 

empathetic.  You actually regret it.  Windrush has happened.  The newspaper stories have been positive.  If you 

are a leaver who did want to end free movement and still wants to, you feel a bit more powerful.  You feel a bit 

of control and you are expecting some changes.  Therefore, for two different reasons, there has been a 

reduction in the temperature.  We have more temperature about Brexit and Europe but we have less 

temperature about immigration.  Bar being very vigilant about hate crime, we should welcome that. 

 

The public, when they get, “OK, a new system, what do you think should be in it”, has actually a moderating 

discussion because they say, “Skills are good and care-workers are important”.  People at all different levels of 

the debate end up thinking, “If I want control of this stuff, I have to think quite hard about it”.  In a way, 

having an open immigration debate about the choices we want - should we keep free movement, should we 

control it differently, should we change it - is actually quite moderating because it is not just all good or bad.  

That has happened and we should lean into it and therefore have more confidence to have the kind of 

leadership you were discussing. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  The positives of immigration have never been talked about in 

politics, never. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  No.  Nobody dares. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):  This goes back generations, a long way, and this is why we are 

where we are with hostile environments and some of these attitudes.  I am not a politician and have never 

worked in politics, but I have worked in immigration law my whole career and so I have understood and seen 

examples of the hostility that is around non-EU citizens.  When the referendum debate started hitting 

immigration and I started listening to the debate on immigration and there was no positive message on 

immigration at that point, that was when my fears started really hitting home that there was a massive risk that 

the vote could be leave at that point.  From my own personal interaction with this, I understood that there is a 

real undercurrent of hostility towards migrants, not at a massive scale, but it is out there.  I understood that if 

we tapped that enough, then the risk of leaving was then increased at that point. 

 

I can only talk from my interactions with EU citizens now.  There is that hostility.  I have listened to examples 

of some EU citizens talking in their own language, say in German on the bus, and then someone walks up to 

them and says, “Why are you speaking that language?  We have voted out.  Why are you still here?”  I spoke to 

Page 29



 

 
 

a woman who set up her own branding business.  She has been here for 15 years and then her friends and 

colleagues started talking about migration and how glad they were we voted out and how we can kick all these 

people out.  She will turn around to them and say, “You are talking about me as well”.  They did not realise 

that she is Belgian and has been here all these years.  She has no accent and you cannot tell, but she will turn 

around and say, “I am one of the people you are talking about.  Do you want to get rid of me?”  They say, 

“No, we do not want to get rid of you.  We are not talking about you at all”. 

 

There are hate crimes and there have been instances of violence.  We do not know how widespread because 

they are really substantially under-reported, but the embassies do receive examples of where people have been 

threatened with violence or with verbal abuse because of the hostilities now that they are facing that non-EU 

citizens have faced for a long time.  There is no political strength there to say, “We are an open country.  We 

welcome migration.  These have been net gains for migration.  This is why we want people here.  This is why 

we want people to stay”, to counteract all of the hostile messages. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  It is incredibly important to counteract prejudice and hate 

crime, but I want to challenge or disagree a bit on just one point.  

 

It is often said now by the more liberal and the more remain end, “The other side made the negative case.  We 

did not make a positive case”.  It is absolutely not the general public’s perception of most Londoners and most 

people that the positive case was not made.  Some people feel the positive case was not made. 

 

A lot of other people feel that some people - and they mean big businesses but they also mean [former Prime 

Ministers] Tony Blair and David Cameron and [former Deputy Prime Minister] Nick Clegg and [former 

Chancellor of the Exchequer] George Osborne - have been making the positive case on the gross domestic 

product gains and blanketing us out and therefore not listening about the local pressures.  That is all they were 

doing and they were not listening.  There were two very polarised perceptions that we were not allowed to say 

we have some problems with it even though we have some problems with it but we are not nasty to our 

neighbours and so on.  There are some people who feel that the positive case was blasted at them and they 

were not allowed to say anything else about it and other people who feel, “You think you were not allowed to 

talk about immigration but you have been talking about it for 40 years and so you obviously were allowed to”.  

There is a real polarisation and people actually feel relieved after Brexit that the debate has opened up and we 

should have done it much earlier and should have been dealing with it and it is good now.  Other people are 

saying, “We have talked about it and we need to close it down”. 

 

It is worth recognising that polarisation and getting into the discomfort a bit of saying, “Let us have a 

discussion where all of those views are legitimate”.  There is then quite a lot of common ground about 

immigration and especially integration between the people who felt they were not allowed to talk about it for 

15 years and the people who feel, “Can we not talk about something else now?”  In a way, the liberal group 

has to not say, “I just want to give you the facts about how good it is”, or, “Can we not talk about something 

else?”  They need to say, “Let us talk about your pressures, let us talk about my gains and let us put together a 

policy”. 

 

The ‘London is Open’ message, for example, is very important and it should work very well.  It needs to work 

for the 40% of Londoners who voted leave.  They need to say, “Yes, London is Open.  I voted leave but 

London is Open”, rather than also being very valuable to the 60% who voted remain, “I am really pleased 

London is staying open because everywhere else is not now”.  It has to bridge that divide. 

 

Page 30



 

 
 

Caroline Russell AM:  ‘London is Open’ is exactly what I was about to ask about.  Do you think that the 

Mayor is doing enough about the need for London to remain an open and tolerant place to live and work?  

Sunder, you were just saying about the fact that it has to work for people who voted leave as well as for people 

who voted remain.  Do you think that that is coming across enough from the messaging that is coming out 

from City Hall? 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  I do not know if it is or it is not, but it would be worth finding 

out about that because, if it is really working, people ought to feel very open.  Broadly, open versus closed is 

not a good way to make the case for open.  You are actually saying something quite pejorative about the other 

group.  Some people are, “Open versus closed”.  Some people are, “Shut the borders”.  That is quite rare.  

Most people are, “London is open but how do we manage it fairly for everybody?”  A certain type of, “Open 

versus closed”, is very important to say to the EU nationals themselves.  It is very important for London to say 

it to the other cities, etc. 

 

However, what it cannot be saying is, “London does not really agree with the rest of the country”, even though 

it is partly true, “and that therefore the people who voted leave in London are not as ‘London’ as the rest of 

us”.  It should be saying, “Whatever these big national debates happening about Brexit, London is still going to 

be London.  We all agree with that and the openness and getting this right”.  Testing that in the boroughs that 

voted leave but with the leave voters who are in all the remain boroughs as well and not to concede too much 

so that the remain voters do not feel they are part of it.  That is quite an important part of the ‘London is 

open’ story. 

 

Caroline Russell AM:  Thank you. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Are there any more questions?  We have exhausted our core questions.  Is there 

anything you think we have not asked you that you think we should be aware of?  Is there something, “Shock, 

horror, they have not said anything about this”, that you want to tell us?  We are going to reflect on what you 

have said to us and we will come back to you with any follow-up questions. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  The bit we did not really do, but there is so much to do, is that 

there will be a White Paper next week if they can decide on it.  It is important for people to realise that these 

are the 2021 changes, not the next March [2019] changes, and there is going to be a debate about that and it 

will be about the low- and medium-skill matters debate.  Instead of saying, “Why have the debate about skills 

at all”, it is a good chance to take the consensus on high skills, student and skilled migration across the 

political consensus and across the referendum.  There is a consensus on that.  Managing low- and semi-skilled 

well in work so that it works for London, it works for everybody is harder work and let us talk about that as 

well, but there is a good thing even if you want migration all the way up and down the skills level.  There is a 

good thing in realising that there is a consensus on student migration and skilled migration.  Therefore, saying, 

“Let us not talk about skills at all because it is good or bad migrants”, is slightly missing part of the point that 

actually, if you take the skilled migration, you cannot have the net migration target we have. 

 

Then we do need mid-skilled migration and lower-skilled migration. Care homes are important, but not just 

going straight to ‘take everybody’ versus ‘all closed’.  It is quite a subtle thing to get right in this next debate, 

which will be in this White Paper this week and the Brexit crisis, but then there will be an Immigration Bill next 

year [2019], which will be the most important piece of immigration legislation since the 1971 [Immigration] 

Act.  If that is a controlled system, how can a controlled system let London be open?  That is really hard work 

for the next period. 

 

Page 31



 

 
 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  We touched on social security coordination before and I 

have some concerns about how the future system is going to work.  Particularly if there is no deal and there is 

no ringfencing of citizens’ rights that includes social security coordination, then we could see a significant 

problem, as Chris was saying before, in terms of the aggregation of pension contributions working smoothly if 

people make pension contributions in different member states and then have the ability to export their 

pensions and have that operated, etc. 

 

Even in the event of a deal that includes provisions on social security coordination, my concern is mainly from 

an administrative point of view.  My experience of working in the system now is that it is uncoordinated 

coordination.  It is really quite hard to get things to work appropriately the way they are in theory meant to, 

even with specialist support, even as a member of the EU. 

 

An example case that I had involved what should have been a fairly straightforward very temporary exportation 

of a benefit claim.  I went on to the relevant benefit office’s website and was directed to contact the 

exportability team.  We did and the exportability team did not exist.  Then I phoned the number that I was told 

to phone and someone answered the phone and said, “Sorry, I do not think this team exists.  Have you tried 

ringing this number?”  It was the number I had just phoned.  It was like being lost down some sort of strange 

administrative rabbit hole. 

 

That, as I say, is from the position of being a member of the EU where we are supposed to be co-ordinating 

social security smoothly and it is anything but smooth.  My concern is that when we are not a member of the 

EU, it is not going to get any easier.  For a number of people, particularly on aggregation of contributions or 

for small periods of exportation for all sorts of, sometimes quite dramatic, life reasons - like if someone has 

settled status but they need to go temporarily to another member state to look after an elderly relative who is 

dying and during that period needs to export a benefit - it is going to get harder and I am worried about that. 

 

Christopher Desira (Director, Seraphus):   Yes, accessing social assistance for those on presettled status is 

going to be a problem as well because presettled status will not gain you social assistance.  The DWP is still 

going to ask you whether you are working, whether you are self-employed and so on.  Settled status will be 

the gateway to social assistance but presettled status should be as well.  If the test is residence and identity 

and so on, then, once you get presettled status, it should be the gateway to social assistance as well.  That is 

going to be an issue. 

 

I would also say - and this is going to be more relevant as we get closer to March [2019] - that if we have a 

deal and the political messenger is that we are ending free movement, maybe the message needs to be much 

more clearer than that.  A message saying that we are ending free movement says to some of the public who 

do not understand this that free movement ends in March [2019] for EU citizens.  It does not; it continues.  

That message needs to change as well. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  There is one final point I would make about integration and 

citizenship.  You mentioned the voting rights for a lot of people.  We do not know where we are going to be on 

the voting rights. 

 

Also, if we have however million people in London, 3.5 million to 4 million people [in the UK], who are here, 

who are told they are a permanent part of our community and who are not citizens, we should be thinking 

about - which just has not come up in the public debate because there are so many complicated things - an 

easy route to citizenship for these people and the Government ought to be encouraging it.  It would be good if 

people do get the right to vote in local elections and London elections, but if they are permanently here, that 

Page 32



 

 
 

is what settled status is.  There should still be an opportunity to ask if there should be a route.  If 4 million 

people are going to go through a system, why have we not asked people if they have thought about being a 

citizen and cut out the barriers and loopholes and costs for this group? 

 

Professor Charlotte O’Brien (York Law School):  Especially for children. 

 

Sunder Katwala (Director, British Future):  That will make the biggest difference to integration because it 

is the largest ever population of people without citizens’ rights who are here permanently. 

 

Len Duvall AM (Chair):  Thank you for the way that you have answered our questions and raised some very 

important points for us to consider and also for the Mayor to consider both on his own actions but also on 

actions we are going to ask of others.  Thank you for that. 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



EU Citizens’ Rights and 
Settled Status
www.seraphus.co.uk
Contracted by the European Commission to provide legal and policy advice to the EC 
Representation in the UK, the EU Embassies and the European Direct Information Centres

Short Version - Information correct as at 28 November 2018

A
ppendix 2

P
age 35



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Introduction 

●Seraphus

●A firm with 30+ years of combined experience

●UK domestic law, asylum, human rights, and EU law

●A www.freemovement.org.uk partner 

●Proponents of freedom of movement for all

●As a result of the 2016 referendum these two areas of immigration 
law are about to intertwine in a way we as practitioners have not 
experienced before

P
age 36



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

EU law

●Currently most EU citizens and their family members live in the UK 
under EU law which is commonly known as free movement

●This allows EU citizens to come to the UK to live, work, set up 
businesses, study etc. (known as ‘exercising treaty rights’)

●Most people do not have much interaction with EU law because 
their passport or ID card is enough to evidence their rights

●Some may have a document issued from the HO - such as a blue PR 
document - which shows that they live in the UK under EU law

●Non-EU family members of EU citizens are the most likely people 
to have such documents in order to travel, be employed, access 
NHS etc., more easily (they are not obliged to apply)

P
age 37



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

2016 
referendum 

●EU law will cease to apply when the UK leaves 

●This has necessitated a negotiated agreement between the EU and 
the UK covering the divorce areas including citizens' rights, 
financial reconciliations, and the Irish border

●This is known as the Withdrawal Agreement (WA), jointly agreed 
on 14 November 2018

●Part Two of the WA sets out the conditions that EU citizens and 
their family members will be able to continue living in the UK for 
the rest of their lives (if they wish), after Brexit

●The WA is not law yet so: nothing is agreed until everything is agreed

P
age 38



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

It’s an issue for 
everyone

“For me as a French resident, I’m thinking, what’s going to happen? Are 
they going to kick me out? Do I need to get a British passport? Should I 

marry an Englishman? No I won’t go that far.”

Eva Green, French born actress

P
age 39



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Key dates 

●28 August 2018 – Start of first trial (PB1) stage for the settled 
status scheme

●01 November 2018 – Start of the second trial (PB2) stage 

●14 November 2018 – WA jointly agreed by the UK and the EU

●29 March 2019 – Latest start date for the settled status scheme

●29 March 2019 – The date the UK leaves the EU

●31 December 2020 – The end of the transition period 

●30 June 2021 – Deadline for EU citizens and family members to 
secure residence rights under the settled status scheme

P
age 40



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Transitional 
period 

●EU law will be maintained

●Free movement continues between 29 March 2019 to 31 December 
2020 (this period can be extended by joint agreement) 

●On 01 January 2021 free movement will end

●A new UK immigration system will be developed for those who 
want to come and live in the UK after this date

P
age 41



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Nationalities 
protected

●The EU27 nationals

●Non-EU family members

●The WA does not cover citizens of Iceland, Liechtenstein, Norway 
(EEA) and Switzerland but the UK Govt. says it intends the citizens 
of these countries to be included in the settled status process

P
age 42



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Individuals 
protected

●EU citizens and family members who, by 31 December 2020, have 
been residing in the UK can continue to do so

●Those who are outside the UK on 31 December 2020 but have 
maintained continuity of residence (without PR)

●Those who are outside the UK on 31 December 2020 and can 
establish a historical continuous residence for a period of 5 years

●Select family members will be allowed to enter the UK after 31 
December 2020

P
age 43



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Family 
members

●Family members of an EU citizen who can enter the UK anytime: 
● Spouse 
● Civil partner 
● Durable partner 
● Dependent children or grandchildren (including adopted, born 

through surrogacy recognised in UK law, and children in respect of 
guardianship orders) 

● Dependent (dependency is assumed) parents or grandparents 

●The relationship must have existed on 31 December 2020 and at 
the time that they enter the UK (except future children)

●All other (extended) family members must be residing in the UK by 
31 December 2020

P
age 44



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Family 
members

●Family members can be of any nationality if related to the: 
● EU national 
● Spouse of the EU national 
● Civil Partner of the EU national 

●Family members of the durable partner are not included

●Other (extended) family members have to be related to an EU 
citizen 

P
age 45



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Family 
members

●Relationships need not need exist on 31 December 2020 for: 
● Future children born to the EU citizen or their spouse and civil partner
● Future children adopted by the EU citizen or their spouse or civil 

partner 

●Any family members who arrive after 31 December 2020 will need 
to apply for pre-settled status within 3 months of their arrival 

P
age 46



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

The settled 
status process

●The WA allows the UK to introduce a constitutive registration 
system to distinguish between current and future EU citizens

●This is what is know as the EU Settlement Scheme/Settled Status 
Scheme

●Two statuses:
● Settled status is for those EU citizens and their family members who 

have lived in the UK for 5 years when they apply (with some limited 
exceptions to the 5 year rule)

● Pre-settled status is for who have not lived in the UK for 5 years by 30 
June 2021 and to allow them to accrue the 5 years needed to apply 
for settled status (they must apply for settled status before their pre-
settled status expires) 

●The details are contained in the Home Office (HO) Statement of 
Intent, Appendix EU of the Immigration Rules and the EU 
Settlement Scheme Caseworker Guidance

P
age 47



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Key 
requirements

●ALL EU CITIZENS WHO WANT TO LIVE IN THE UK AFTER 31 
DECEMBER 2020 HAVE TO APPLY UNDER THE SCHEME!

●Except those who hold ILR. But they can and probably should apply 
as well 

●Even those who have a PR card still need to apply

●To apply there are 4 things that an applicant must do: 
●Make a valid application 
● Prove identity and nationality 
● Prove length of residence in the UK
● Undergo a criminality check (for over 18s) 

P
age 48



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

A simple 
process?

●The HO has said that the process will be: 
● Streamlined 
● User-friendly 
● Draw on existing government data
●Work with applicants to avoid errors or omissions 
● Approach is to look to grant, not for reasons to refuse 
● HO Caseworkers will be able to exercise discretion in favour of 

applicants, with a principle of evidential flexibility  
● HO will work with applicants and give them a ‘reasonable opportunity’ 

to avoid errors or omissions that may impact on the decision process.
● But, only where 'a simple omission' has taken place

P
age 49



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Move 
favourable 
provisions 

●To make the pre/settled status easier to administer the UK 
Government has used the 'more favourable provisions' at Art 34 WA 
to forgo the following requirements of free movement: 
● Evidence of exercising 'treaty rights' in most situations (see also EU16 

Suitability requirements) 
● Evidence Comprehensive Sickness Health Insurance (Students and 

Self-Sufficient persons) 

● In essence this means that the HO will look at how long an 
applicant has been resident in the UK for and not at whether they 
have been working, unemployed, claiming benefits etc. 

P
age 50



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Applying

●Most EU citizens cannot apply at the moment (only test groups)

●Application process to be ‘fully open’ by 29 March 2019

●Applying by 30 June 2021 gives discretion as to the date of 
submission

●Choose the most optimum period, some people may want to 
establish their status as soon as they can 

●Online form and an Identity App 

●Paper form will be available to a limited (as yet undefined) group, 
the online form will be the norm

●A certificate of application will be generated on applying  

P
age 51



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Fees

●Adults - £65

●Under 16s - £32.50 

●Free for those with ILR / PR documents 

●Free for 'Looked After Children' (i.e.: those under local authority 
care)

●Free for holders of pre-settled status who apply for settled status 

P
age 52



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Valid 
application

●An application must be valid before the HO will consider it

●There are four requirements for validity: 
● It must be made in the UK using the required application process
● Payment of the fee 
● Provide the required proof of identity and nationality 
● Enrol facial image (Non-EU citizen family members will need to enrol 

biometric data)

●An application will not be rejected as invalid, a reasonable 
opportunity to fix the invalidity will be allowed

● If an applicant is given a reasonable opportunity to remedy the 
invalidity but fails to do so the HO will retain the entire fee

P
age 53



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Identity

●Verified by a passport (for any applicant), or 
● National ID card (for EU citizens) 
● Biometric Residence Permit (for Non-EU citizens) 
● Biometric Residence Card issued under the EEA Regulations 

●An App will check biometric passports and transmit identity data to 
the HO

●Face-to-face services may be implemented to allow applicants to 
access the App

●Alternatively, documents can be posted to the HO

●The HO may accept alternative evidence of identity and nationality 
'where the applicant is unable to obtain or produce the required 
document due to circumstances beyond their control or to compelling 
practical or compassionate reasons'

P
age 54



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Residence: 
establishing

●The online form will automatically check HMRC for evidence of 
residence against an applicant's NI number

●The HO will not check any data beyond an 'ongoing relationship 
with HMRC’ 

●The HO has said they will also carry out checks with the DWP

●Gaps in records can be supplemented with addition proof of 
residence

●A non-prescriptive list of acceptable residence evidence in the EU 
Settlement Scheme: evidence of UK residence guidance 

●Can submit a photocopy, photograph or scanned digital image of 
any required evidence

●Note exclusions

P
age 55



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Residence: 
continuous

●They must not have been absent from the UK for more than 6 
months in any 12 month period otherwise continuous residence is 
broken

●One period of absence of more than 6 months but which do not 
exceed 12 months are permitted for an important reason
● childbirth
● serious illness
● study
● vocational training
● overseas posting

●Any period of compulsory military service is permitted

P
age 56



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Criminality

●The HO intends to identify serious or persistent offenders, or 

●Anyone who poses a security threat 

●Disclosure will be required by the EU citizen or family member
aged 18 or over

●Checks will be made against UK criminality and security databases
(PNC and WI) 

●Checks may be made against overseas criminal records 

●Conduct, including convictions that relate to it, before 31 
December 2020 will be assessed according to the current EU public 
policy tests for deportation 

●Conduct, including convictions that relate to it, from 01 January 
2021 will be considered against UK deportation thresholds

P
age 57



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Criminality: 
suitability

●An application will be refused on grounds of suitability where: 
● The applicant is subject of a deportation order or a decision to make a 

deportation order 

● The applicant is the subject of an exclusion order or an exclusion 
decision, or 

● The applicant is subject to a removal decision under the EEA 
Regulations on the grounds of their non-exercise or misuse of rights 
under Directive 2004/38/EC

●An application may also be refused where, whether or not to the 
applicant's knowledge:
● False or misleading information was submitted 

● False representations or documents have been submitted 

● The decision must be proportionate 

P
age 58



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Granted: 
the status

●For EU citizens, evidence of pre-settled or settled status will be in 
digital form – this means online they can:
● View the status 
● Understand the rights associated with the status
● Update personal details 

●Accessible via a username and password 

●This digital form can be shared by the holder with third parties via a 
single use access code 

●After 31 December 2020 the following may ask for evidence of 
status: employers, landlords, NHS, banks, DWP, immigration 
services

P
age 59



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Granted: 
the status

●Non-EU citizen family members will be issued with a biometric 
residence document 

●Holders of pre-settled status will need to maintain continuous 
residence and, where relevant, their family relationship, in order to 
qualify for settled status later 

●Holders of pre-settled status must apply for settled status before 
the expiry of the pre-settled status to continue living in the UK

●Holders of both statuses will be able to travel to and from the UK 
using a valid passport or (at least until 31 December 2025) a valid 
national ID card

P
age 60



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Refusals

●Where a valid application is refused before 31 December 2020 the 
applicant can: 
● Reapply to remedy the refusal ground 

● Request an administrative review of the decision

● If the refusal is received after 30 March 2019, apply to appeal the 
decision (subject to primary legislation) 

●An appeal is made to the immigration tribunal at a cost of £80 / 
£140 (depending on an paper or oral appeal)

●Continued right of residence under free movement is unaffected by 
refusal decisions received before 31 December 2020 

P
age 61



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Missed 
deadlines

● If an applicant misses the 30 June 2021 deadline they can apply late

●They must have a 'good reason' for the delay in their application 
date

●They will then have a reasonable further period in which to apply 

●But, a period of unlawful residence may occur

●SO MAKE SURE YOU APPLY BEFORE THE DEADLINE!

P
age 62



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Deal or no deal?

●Legal position is on 30 March 2019 the current EEA Regulations will 
stay in force [section 2 of The European Union (Withdrawal) Act] –
in effect a continuation of free movement (for now)

●Once this happens the UK Govt. will have to decide how to proceed 
with EU citizens’ rights

●The HO have hinted that they are working towards the settled 
status scheme whatever the outcome of the negotiations, this 
would be the sensible approach

●Note however, during the negotiations the UK has conceded on a 
few points like future family members and there is a theoretical risk 
of that might be rolled back

●Ultimately, we cannot say with legal certainty what will happen in 
the event of a no deal

P
age 63



Presentation by www.seraphus.co.uk, correct as of 28 November 2018

Further info

●EU citizens and their family members can follow updates on:
● The https://www.the3million.org.uk website 

● The www.freemovement.org.uk website 

● The EU Rep https://ec.europa.eu/unitedkingdom/services/your-
rights_en website

● GLA Hub https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-
economy/representing-london-brexit-talks/eu-londoners-hub

● And register for email updates on the gov.uk page: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/status-of-eu-nationals-in-the-uk-
whatyou-need-to-know (Google: 'EU settled status')

P
age 64

https://www.the3million.org.uk/
http://www.freemovement.org.uk/
https://ec.europa.eu/unitedkingdom/services/your-rights_en
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-economy/representing-london-brexit-talks/eu-londoners-hub
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/status-of-eu-nationals-in-the-uk-whatyou-need-to-know


 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Summary List of Actions 
 

Report to: EU Exit Working Group 
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 13 February 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public. 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of completed and ongoing actions arising from previous meetings of the  

EU Exit Working Group. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Working Group notes the completed and outstanding actions arising from 

previous meetings of the EU Exit Working Group, and additional correspondence. 

 

 

Actions Arising from the Meeting on 28 November 2018 

 

Minute 

Number 

Topic Status For action by 

5.  The Future Status of EU Nationals; Deal 

or No-Deal 

 

That authority be delegated to the Chair, in 

consultation with party Group Lead 

Members, to agree an output from the 

discussion and the previous meetings of the 

Working Group in October 2018. 

 

 

Ongoing.  

 

 

Scrutiny Team 

Manager.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 4



        

 

 

Actions Arising from the Meeting on 25 October 2018 

 

Minute 

Number 

Topic Status For action by 

4.  Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor of London on Exiting the EU  
 

During the course of the discussion, the 

Mayor agreed the following: 

 To provide a list of the 

meetings the Mayor attended 

in Brussels on Friday, 26 

October 2018; 

 To provide a copy of the 

survey sent to businesses, and 

anonymous responses to the 

survey; 

 To make the research 

undertaken on food prices 

available to the Working 

Group;  

 To provide the details of the 

problems that the Mayor’s 

Office has had with receiving 

data from the Government; 

and 

 To make the research 

undertaken on food insecurity 

in individual households in 

London available to the 

Working Group. 

 

 

 

 

 

Completed. See 

Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Mayor 

 

 

 

Additional Correspondence 

 

2.2 The Chair of the EU Exit Working Group wrote to previous guests requesting further information on 

their concerns about the level of information being made to business by the Government, and what 

work was being done by their firms and businesses to prepare for a “no-deal” Brexit.  

 

2.3 A response from Tim Rycroft, Chief Operating Officer, Food and Drink Federation is attached at 

Appendix 2. 

 

 

3. Legal Implications 
 

Page 66



        

3.1   The Working Group has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 

4.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report.  

 

 

List of appendices to this report:   

Appendix 1 – Letter from the Mayor of London, dated 3 December 2018 

Appendix 2 – Letter from Tim Rycroft, Food and Drink Federation, dated 24 January 2019 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None. 

 

Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant 

Telephone: 020 7983 4383 

Email: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Appendix 1

Page 69



Page 70



Appendix 2

Page 71



Page 72



 

   

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Contingency Planning as London 
Prepares for a “No-Deal” Brexit 

 

Report to: EU Exit Working Group    
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 13 February 2019 

This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report provides background information for the EU Exit Working Group’s meeting with 

Fiona Twycross AM, Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience, and John Hetherington, Head of 

London Resilience.  

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That the Working Group notes:  

(a) The report as background to putting questions to Fiona Twycross AM and John 

Hetherington; and notes 

(b) The subsequent discussion. 

 

2.2 That the Working Group delegates authority to the Chair, in consultation with party 

Group Lead Members, to agree an output from the discussion. 

 

 

3. Background   
 
3.1 Article 50 of the Treaty on the European Union provides for an EU Member State to leave the EU 

with or without a withdrawal agreement or ‘deal’.  

 

3.2 The Government has stated that preparations for a “no-deal” scenario are part of its overall Brexit 

preparation strategy. Secondary legislation is being laid under the European Union (Withdrawal) 

Act 2018 that will preserve EU law in domestic law or convert it into UK law on exit day,  

29 March 2019. If the UK leaves the EU without a deal, most EU law will still apply in the UK as 

domestic law (i.e. retained EU law or EU-based UK law) but there will be no reciprocity with EU 

Member States.  

 

 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5



 

 

3.3 The Government believes that a “no-deal” scenario could be managed in an “orderly” fashion. On 

18 December 2018, the Cabinet agreed to proceed with the Government’s next phase of  

“no-deal” planning. With under two months until the UK’s exit from the EU, the Government is 

seeking to accelerate and intensify preparations. Preparing for “no-deal” is now an operational 

priority for the Government and it has recommended that “businesses now also ensure they are 

prepared and enact their own ‘no-deal’ plans”.  

3.4 Over the course of August, September and October 2018, the Government published 106 

technical notices to give citizens and businesses some of the information they will need to 

prepare for EU Exit. Since the publication of the technical notices, there have been further 

Government actions, including: 

 Publishing more than 100 pages of guidance for businesses on processes and procedures at 

the border in a no-deal scenario; 

 Contacting 145,000 businesses who trade with the EU, telling them to start getting ready for 

“no-deal” customs procedures; 

 Advising hundreds of ports, traders, pharmaceutical firms and other organisations that use 

the border about potential disruption, so they can get their supply chains ready; and 

 Publishing a paper on citizens’ rights and a white paper on future immigration policy, giving 

EU nationals more information on future settlement and immigration policy. 
 

3.5 On 28 January 2019, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government announced 

an additional £56.5m to help councils prepare for Brexit. Councils will receive £20m this financial 

year and £20m next financial year to help them plan and to ensure they have capacity to respond 

to need. The Greater London Authority (GLA) will receive a flat rate of £182,000 over the two 

years. Each London borough and the City of London Corporation will receive £210,000 (£105,000 

this year and £105,000 next year). London’s total allocation will be around £7.1 million.   
 

 

4. Issues for Consideration   
 
4.1  At its meeting on 25 October 2018, the Working Group questioned John Barradell, Deputy Chair 

of the London Resilience Forum (LRF) about the work of the Forum in co-ordinating and sharing 

best practice amongst the organisations that are represented on it as they prepare for a “no-deal” 

Brexit. Mr Barradell summarised the findings of a report from the London Resilience Partnership 

(LRP) Brexit Contingency Planning Board, which was produced after a summit with sector 

partners on their state of preparedness and level of contingency planning. The report1 noted the 

following key points:  

   The technical notices and details of the Government’s preparations published by central 

Government, while helpful for some sector specific issues, do not alone contain sufficient 

information to inform contingency planning; 

 The need to ensure absolute political impartiality in the work to develop contingency plans 

for Brexit, and to de-weaponise information was noted at the summit. This is believed to be 

                                                 
1 https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_resilience_partnership_-_brexit_resilience_report.pdf  

Page 74

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_resilience_partnership_-_brexit_resilience_report.pdf


 

reflective of a general concern that information prepared by professional bodies is often 

appropriated for political use in pro and anti-Brexit campaigning; 

 Comprehensive assessments of the implications for critical supply chains and personnel need 

to be conducted by Partnership organisations where they have not yet been fully considered; 

 Partners are generally confident in their ability to implement adequate contingency plans for 

Brexit, and in the Partnership’s capability to respond to specific risks such as increased 

protest activity and the potential for civil unrest. These issues are considered to be within the 

Partnership’s extant emergency response capabilities. However, there is a gap in information 

about potential risks that may require the Partnership to respond to an emergency, including 

a need to develop detailed planning assumptions; for example residual risk (following central 

Government mitigation) of disruption to food, energy, and/or fuel supplies, and borders 

(people and goods); and 

 The information received in the technical notices to date does not indicate significant 

concerns in the areas of energy and fuel supplies, but there remains uncertainty about the 

implications for food supplies and border disruption. 
 

4.2 Sector-based syndicate groups were asked to provide an initial assessment of the potential 

implications on the resilience of their sector of a worst-case scenario “no-deal” Brexit (with no 

transition/implementation period from 29 March 2019) against a scale ranging from ‘significant 

positive impact’ to ‘significant negative impact’.  
 

The sectors responded as follows: 

 Health sector: Significant negative impact on resilience; 

 Local authorities: Negative to significant negative impact on resilience; 

 Emergency services: Negative impact on resilience;  

 Business: Slight negative to negative impact on resilience;  

 Transport and utilities: Negative to significant negative impact on resilience; and 

 Environment, voluntary, faith: Slight negative to negative impact on resilience. 
 

Priority areas for future planning 

4.3 The LRP proposed a wide range of work to further deepen the levels of understanding and 

preparedness of the sectors and organisations involved. This would include comprehensive 

assessments of potential supply chain disruption on critical services in the event of significant 

disruption to freight transiting through ports of entry to the UK in Kent and elsewhere, where 

they have not already done so. This should include assessment of the potential consequences of 

disruption to people and goods at borders within London including Heathrow and London City 

airports, St Pancras International and the Port of London. 
 

4.4 The LRP itself would further consider the implications for communities and community tension 

and develop plans for a joint approach to supporting community cohesion. This would include 

reviewing extant capabilities for dealing with protests and civil unrest against an evolving 

assessment of this risk.  
 

4.5 The LRP would also share information about the approach being taken to provide guidance and 

support to workforces.  

 

Page 75



 

 
 

4.6 A set of milestones were set out in the document and this meeting provides an opportunity for 

Assembly Members to: 

 Be briefed on how far that work has progressed; 

 Identify the key areas of concern; and 

 Assess whether there are any mitigation measures that the Mayor needs to take to better 

prepare London for a possible “no-deal” Brexit.  

 

4.7  The following guests have been invited to the meeting and will participate in the discussion: 

 Dr Fiona Twycross AM, Chair, London Resilience Forum; and 

 John Hetherington, Head of London Resilience.  

  

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Assembly has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None. 

 

Contact Officer: Richard Derecki, Scrutiny Team Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4899 

E-mail: richard.derecki@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 76

mailto:richard.derecki@london.gov.uk


 

   

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: The Role of LEAP in Helping London 
Businesses Prepare for Brexit 

 

Report to: EU Exit Working Group    
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 13 February 2019 

This report will be considered in public 
 

 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report provides background information for the EU Exit Working Group’s meeting to discuss 

London’s preparedness for Brexit.    

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That the Working Group notes:  

(a) The report as background to putting questions to Jamie Izzard, 

Senior Manager – Local Enterprise Panel; and notes 

(b) The subsequent discussion. 

 

2.2 That the Working Group delegates authority to the Chair, in consultation with party 

Group Lead Members, to agree an output from the discussion. 

 

 

3. Background   
 
3.1 The London Economic Action Partnership (LEAP) is the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for 

London. LEPs were first established in 2011 (2012 in London). LEPs are responsible for 

promoting a business-led and more locally responsive way to bid for and spend government grant 

to support economic development.  
 

3.2 The LEAP is the main vehicle through which the Mayor will deliver economic development for 

London. The LEAP’s Terms of Reference1 set out the remit for its work, outlining six main areas 

of responsibilities which include support for the development and implementation of the Mayor’s 

Economic Development Strategy (EDS).  
 
 
 

                                                 
1 https://lep.london/sites/default/files/Constitution%20%26%20ToR%20%28Feb%202018%29.pdf 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 6

https://lep.london/sites/default/files/Constitution%20%26%20ToR%20%28Feb%202018%29.pdf


 

 

 

Funding sources 

3.3 The LEAP has received money through the Growing Places Fund, Growth Deals 1, 2 and 3 

(sourced via the Local Growth Fund), as well as the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone Business Rates. 

Most of the LEAP’s funding is capital funding. See Table 1 below. 

 

 

Table 1      Funding Streams  

Growing Places Fund 

A pot of capital funding given by the Department for Communities and Local Government (now the 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)) in three rounds in 2012, 2013 and 

2016. In total, the LEAP will have received £110 million. LEAP has allocated £97.4 million of this funding 

so far and will distribute the remainder in 2018-19. 

Growth Deals 

Capital funding given by the MHCLG in three rounds for the period 2015-2021. As part of Growth Deals 

1 and 2, London received £294 million. London has now received its indicative profile for Growth Deal 3 

and should receive £141 million by 2020-21. 

MHCLG Revenue Grant 

The LEAP is given a small revenue grant of £250k from MHCLG to cover the admin costs of running the 

LEAP. 

Royal Docks Enterprise Zone Business Rates 

The LEAP has first call on additional business rates raised in the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone, i.e. 

business rates from new businesses moving into the area as regeneration continues. The LEAP has first 

call on these business rates until 2038. 
 

3.4 By 2020, the LEAP will have distributed over half a billion pounds in growth funding. Over the 

next 20 years the LEAP estimates that it will generate a further £950 million in business rates 

from the Royal Dock Enterprise Zone.  

 

3.5  The Greater London Authority (GLA) budget lists five capital areas that the LEAP allocates 

funding across: 

 London Regeneration Fund (now closed with final funds to be paid out in   

 2018/19); 

 Growing Places Fund (coming to an end; final funds to be paid out in 2018/19); 

 Skills for Londoners Capital Fund (flagship scheme); 

 Good Growth Fund (flagship scheme funded by Growth Deal money); and 

 Small Sites. 
 

Actual and projected spend  

3.6 In the financial year 2017/18, the LEAP spent in the region of £45 million.2 This is projected to 

increase threefold in 2018/19, to £134 million, with a slight drop to £109 million in 2019/20, as 

some funding sources come to an end. See Table 2 below. 

                                                 
2 There appears to be a discrepancy with the Royal Docks expenditure. Raw data supplied following the informal members’ 
briefing put it at around £800k. The data on the presentation puts it at £1.6 million.   

Page 78



 

   

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Table 2  LEAP Actual and Projected Spend for the Financial Years 2017/18 to 2021/22 

LEAP Expenditure 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Previous Yrs 

Actual Actual

Proposed 

Budget

Proposed 

Budget

Proposed 

Budget

Proposed 

Budget Total

Total Funding
Programme Area

London Regeneration Fund 2.6              6.8              8.2              -            -            -            17.6            

Growing Places Fund 57.0            24.8            22.6            1.1              0.6              -            106.1          

Further Education Capital Programme (Growth Deal 1 & 2) 18.5            8.9              51.1            22.7            8.5              -            109.8          

Skills for Londoners Capital Fund (New-Growth Deal 3) -            1.3              21.8            49.8            30.9            -            103.8          

Good Growth Fund -            -            14.3            26.0            26.1            -            66.4            

Small Sites -            0.3              2.9              4.4              5.8              -            13.4            

Digital Skills (EBPU) 0.3              0.6              2.9              0.8              0.7              -            5.3              

Green Infrastucture (Good Growth Fund) -            -            0.2              0.6              -            -            0.8              

Commercial Boiler- Air Quality (GD3) -            0.0              6.5              3.5              -            -            10.0            

Air Quality- (GD3) -            -            1.0              -            -            -            1.0              

Core funding 0.9              0.4              1.0              0.5              0.5              -            3.2              

Growth hub funding 0.5              0.5              0.5              0.5              0.5              -            2.6              

79.8            43.5            133.0          109.9          73.6            -            439.8          

Land and Property Royal Docks -Enterprise Zone -            1.6              1.9              -            -            -            3.5              

-            -            -            -            -            -            -            

79.8            45.1            134.9          109.9          73.6            -            443.3          

Total Capital and Revenue

P
age 79



 

   

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

 

3.7 In 2017/18 the LEAP spent over half of its funds through the Growing Places Fund, with Further 

Education and the London Regeneration Fund being the other two big spends. All other projects 

received less than £1 million each.  

 

3.8 Table 3 (below) shows the 20 largest projects funded during 2017/18. These projects focus on 

major capital works, such as construction works for Further Education campuses or high street 

improvement works. Approximately half of all monies spent in 2017/18 were allocated to three 

projects, two transport-related, and the third being Barking Riverside.   

 

Table 3 Profile of the 20 Largest Projects Funded by LEAP  

Purpose of Project Spend 
GPF Project - West Anglia Route (STAR) To improve transport connections 
between the Boroughs £10,556,115 

GPF Project - Barking Riverside, Drovers Road £5,920,195 

GPF Project - Delivery of a new Hackney Wick station £4,187,000 

GPF Project - London Co-Investment Fund £2,939,123 

FEC project - Construction of a new STEM Centre £1,835,031 

FEC project - New state of the art Digital Skills campus £1,472,868 

FEC project - Gnome House £1,374,226 

LRF project - Erith - town centre improvements £1,206,793 

FEC project - The Health and Social Care hub  £1,184,708 
FEC project - Construction of the new Colindale Skills Centre and Modernisation of 
Southgate Centre  £1,042,187 

LRF project - South Kilburn Enterprise Hub £749,603 

LRF project - Uxbridge Town Centre - high street improvements/busness support £737,736 

LRF project - Abbey Wood - high street improvements/business support £668,261 
LRF project - North Woolwich - refurbishment of Old North Woolwich Station 
building for workspace/community space £476,931 

FEC project - Dine in Southall (DiSH) £448,041 

FEC project - Maida Vale campus refurb £441,709 

LRF project - Camberwell Old Fire Station - community arts space £430,000 

LRF project - Dalston Works - workspace improvements £360,950 

FEC project - Rainham Construction Infrastructure Skills Innovation Centre £332,940 

GPF project - Southall Big Plan £320,425 

 

The London Growth Hub  

3.9 Growth Hubs are a Government-led initiative, which aims to join up national and local business 

support landscape by bringing them together so it is easy for businesses to find the help they 

need. Their main areas of focus are on supporting pre-starts, start-ups and survival small and 

medium enterprises (SMEs).  Up until the end of 2017/18 they were funded by a ring-fenced 

grant. Table 2 above shows that £500k was spent on the upkeep of the Hub during 2017/18, and 

that the same sum has been allocated for subsequent years up to 2020/21. The Government has 

confirmed that the LEAP will continue to receive Growth Hub funding (£520,000) during 

2018/19 and 2019/20.  

Page 80



 

 

 

 

3.10 The London Growth Hub was launched in November 2016, with the aim of simplifying the 

business landscape by bringing together the capital’s vast business support offer into a single 

online resource at https://www.growthhub.london. Performance is measured against defined 

targets agreed by LEAP. The table below sets out progress as at 31 August 2017, as reported to 

the LEAP Board in October 2017. 

 

Measuring success 

3.11 The table below details current progress against agreed targets for the end of 2017/18. 

 

Measure Position at 31 August 
2018 

Position at 31 January 
2019 

Target for 31 March 
2018 

Unique users of on 
growthhub.london 

53,800 98,766 100,000 

Registered users on 
growthhub.london 

900 1,904 1,500 

User satisfaction 
ratings at ‘good’ or 
‘excellent’ 

98% 98% 90% 

Business support 
events delivered 

84 137 120 

Promotional events 27 41 40 

One-to-one support  
(hours) 

524 535 900 

Source: LEAP Board officers 2019.  
 

The LEAP’s work to support London businesses prepare for Brexit 

3.11 On 27 September 2018, the LEAP launched its Brexit Business Hub.  The Brexit Hub is updated 

daily with news, Brexit related events and factsheets to guide and support businesses until the 

implications of Brexit become clear. Through the Brexit Hub, the LEAP wants to encourage small 

and micro-businesses to think about how resilient their businesses are to adapt to the UK leaving 

the EU by encouraging them to look at the status of any EU staff, supply chains, taxation, 

intellectual property, and their ability to trade in the marketplace, among other issues.  
 

3.12 The LEAP is in the process of appointing a partner to deliver a dedicated Brexit Business support 

programme. The programme will run for nine months and will engage with 1,500 SME, through a 

series of workshops and events delivered across London’s sub regions. The first phase of the 

project will consist of workshops and masterclasses delivered by experts on issues that could 

potentially affect London based SMEs. This phase will support SMEs to think about potential 

areas where Brexit may impact their businesses and help them develop and put in place business 

strategies to limit any negative impact. After 29 March 2019 and once the terms of Brexit are 

more clearly defined the programme will be re-shaped to offer specific support as deemed 

necessary. 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 81

https://www.growthhub.london/


 

 

 

3.13 The LEAP faces, at least, four challenges as it seeks to provide support to London’s business: 

 Lack of clarity as to which sectors are most exposed to trade disruption risk 

 Lack of resources – no additional funds appear to have been made available to the LEAP 

 Lack of certainty as to what they should be communicating to businesses 

 Lack of ability to engage with businesses – the LEAP does not typically engage one-on-

one with businesses.    

 

The Shared Prosperity Fund 

3.14 The Government is committed to creating a UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF), a domestic 

programme of investment in place of European Structural and Investment Funds (ESIF). The Fund 

is “specifically designed to reduce inequalities between communities” and to “help deliver 

sustainable, inclusive growth”.3 The LEAP has strategic oversight of around £581 million ESIF, for 

the 2014-2020 funding round. The ESIF funding leverages an equal amount of domestic match 

funding, meaning the total value of the ESIF programme in London is over £1 billion.4  

 

3.15 The GLA has highlighted two key risks the UKSPF will pose for London. Firstly, the fund will be 

managed centrally, where currently, management of ESIF in London is devolved to the GLA. 

There is also a concern that London will not get a fair share of the funding once the total is 

divided between UK nations and English LEP areas or any other geographical split decided on.5  

 

3.16 In a written Ministerial Statement, published in July 2018, the Government committed to 

respecting existing devolution arrangements in the devolved nations and to engaging with 

devolved administrations to ensure the fund works for all places across the UK.6  

 

 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 

4.1  The following guest has been invited to the meeting and will participate in the discussion: 

 Jamie Izzard, Senior Manager – LEP, GLA. 
 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Assembly has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

                                                 
3 Future Places: How replacing EU funds can unlock the power of community, HM Government October 2017 
4 GLA agenda cover report dated 5 October 2017 Figures quoted are therefore correct as at October 2017. 
5 GLA Skills for Londoners Taskforce agenda report, dated 9 November 2017 
6 Local Growth – Written Statement HCWS927 

Page 82

https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngovmb/documents/s59365/07%20UK%20Shared%20Prosperity%20Fund.pdf


 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None. 

 

Contact Officer: Richard Derecki, Scrutiny Team Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4899 

E-mail: richard.derecki@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 83

mailto:richard.derecki@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	Draft Minutes - Appendix 1 - Future Status of EU Nationals
	Draft Minutes - Appendix 2 - EU Citizens Rights and Settled Status

	4 Summary List of Actions
	04a - Response from Mayor of London
	04b - Response from Tim Rycroft - FDF

	5 Contingency Planning as London Prepares for a "No-Deal" Brexit
	6 The Role of LEAP in Helping London Businesses Prepare for Brexit

